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SJTA
The South Jersey Transportation Authority
was established by the Legislature in June 1991 to assume
operational responsibilities for the Atlantic City Expressway,
Atlantic City International Airport, and parking facilities in Atlantic City.
As the successor to the New Jersey Expressway Authority
and Atlantic County Transportation Authority (ACTA),
the SJTA serves six counties: Atlantic, Camden, Cape May,
Cumberland, Gloucester, and Salem.
Legislation (South Jersey Transportation Authority Act),
L.1991, c. 252 § 1, eff. Aug 9, 1991 (N.J.S.A. 27:25A-1 et seq.)
charged the Authority with coordinating South Jersey’s transportation
system, including addressing the region’s highway network,
aviation facilities, and transportation needs. The Authority’s network
encompasses public highways, transportation projects, parking
facilities and functions once performed by ACTA, other public
transportation facilities and related economic
development facilities in New Jersey.

2015

Table of Contents
Letter of Transmittal from The Board Chairman . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
SJTA Board of Commissioners. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
Letter of Transmittal from The Executive Director . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
Mission, Vision and Core Values. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
Core Functions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
Atlantic City Expressway. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6
Transportation Services. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13
Atlantic City International Airport. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15
Regional Progress/Energy Initiative. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
SJTA Capital Plan 2015 - 2024. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
Certification of Annual Audit and Finanical Audit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19

i

2015

2015

Letter of Transmittal
from the Board Chairman
Throughout 2015, the South Jersey Transportation Authority
(SJTA) introduced multiple solutions addressing transportation
infrastructure needs while simultaneously connecting people
and commerce throughout southern New Jersey. The Authority’s
capital plan advances numerous roadway and airport projects in
addition to initiatives that meet the needs of those underserved
by reliable transit. While “doing more with less,” the SJTA has
continued to reduce operating costs without affecting our high
standards for serving our customers, a feat which I truly applaud.
Maintaining our infrastructure in a “State-of-Good Repair” is a
Richard T. Hammer
top
priority while enhancing transportation options remains a
Acting NJDOT Commissioner
cornerstone to a more reliable transportation system.
The Authority’s commitment to excellence, serving millions of travelers each year,
provides a strong foundation for future growth that benefits not only the region, but our
entire State. As New Jersey continues to address the fiscal challenges facing our region,
the role of the SJTA as a driver of sustainable economic growth and activity in southern
New Jersey is more important than ever.
The entire SJTA organization takes its role as a provider of safe, reliable, and efficient
travel very seriously and looks forward to implementing new ideas to enhance the
experience for its road, air, and bus patrons in 2016 and beyond.
Sincerely,

Richard T. Hammer
Acting NJDOT Commissioner
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SJTA Board of Commissioners 2015

Chris Christie
Governor

Kim Guadagno
Lt. Governor

Richard T. Hammer
Acting NJDOT Commissioner
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Jeffery A. April, Esq.
Vice Chairman

Joseph W. Devine

Maurice B. Hill, Jr. DMD

Melissa Orsen

C. Robert McDevitt

Joseph Ripa

James “Sonny” McCullough

Peter C. Elco

SJTA Executive Director
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Stephen F. Dougherty
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Letter of Transmittal
from the Executive Director
The South Jersey Transportation Authority (SJTA) continues
to move in a positive direction with 2015 proving to be a
year that placed many challenges and changes before us.
As we manage through a challenging fiscal climate, I am
proud to say the SJTA continues to do its part to develop
and maintain a reliable transportation network that supports
the regional and State economy.
As always, the Atlantic City Expressway continues to
provide motorists an efficient and scenic travel experience.
Last year, our capital program for ACE included projects
improving our roadway infrastructure, such as overpass bridge and deck
rehabilitations, in addition to an extensive resurfacing program.
Stephen F. Dougherty
SJTA Executive Director

Transportation Services continues to meet the needs of underserved riders. This
department launched the Pureland East-West Community Shuttle service last June,
providing residents with a new means of getting to work and offering an alternative
mode of transportation to assist senior, disabled, and unemployed citizens with
access to social, medical, and employment centers. The department was awarded
the “2015 Best Collaborative Effort Award” by the Non-Profit Development Center
of Southern New Jersey for its English-Creek Tilton Road Community Shuttle and
the significant impact it has had on the local community. By introducing
new routes in our region, we are working towards better serving our current and
future patrons.
The Atlantic City International Airport (ACY) experienced a year of taxiway and
terminal improvements while continuing to offer air service to some of the most
desired cities in the eastern and central parts of the United States. I would like to
thank Spirit Airlines for its partnership with ACY and look forward to enhancing
the customer experience for the 3,300 air passengers who utilize our facility and
services each day.
We are truly a driving force in fulfilling the needs of those who rely on public
transportation and the commuters and visitors who travel our roads and utilize our
airport. The SJTA is committed to furthering our mission and meeting the needs
of our citizens for 2016 and beyond with the help of a dedicated and loyal staff of
professionals who comprise the SJTA family.
Respectfully,

Stephen F. Dougherty
SJTA Executive Director
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SJTA Purpose
Mission
The mission of the South Jersey Transportation Authority
is to provide the traveling public with safe and efficient transportation
through the acquisition, construction, maintenance, operation, and
support of expressway, airport, transit, parking, other transportation
projects, and services that support the economies of
Atlantic, Camden, Cape May, Cumberland,
Gloucester, and Salem Counties.

Vision
A leader in transportation, safely moving people and commerce,
to stimulate the economy now and into the future.

Core Values
SAFETY
Maintain high standards in safety and security
for our employees and the traveling public.
INNOVATION
Translate new ideas into solutions and improvements
through technology and human resources.
PROFESSIONALISM
Conduct ourselves ethically and with
integrity worthy of the public trust.
DIVERSITY
Provide a multicultural workforce
access to procurement opportunities
and transportation services.
EXCELLENCE
Commit to the highest standards
of customer service delivery.
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SJTA Core Functions
Atlantic City Expressway
The Atlantic City Expressway (ACE) provides safe and efficient travel to
millions of motorists. Opened to traffic in 1964, it was connected directly
into Atlantic City in 1965. The 44.5 mile roadway extends from Atlantic
City through Atlantic, Camden, and Gloucester counties, ending at Route
42, approximately 10 miles east of Philadelphia. Emergency Service Patrol
vehicles are available on the roadway as a courtesy to ACE motorists. In
2001, the Expressway was expanded to include the 2.5 mile Atlantic City
Brigantine Expressway Connector.

Transportation Services
The South Jersey Transportation Authority (SJTA) provides transportation
services with transit routes that increase accessibility to employment
opportunities in areas underserved by transit. The Transportation Services
Department also operates and manages all of the SJTA parking facilities and
shuttles in Camden, Atlantic City, and at Atlantic City International Airport.
In addition, the department promulgates and enforces the rules
and regulations of the motorbus industry in Atlantic County.

Atlantic City International Airport
The Atlantic City International Airport (ACY) conducts commercial and
general aviation operations, offering air travel to support commerce,
tourism and the general public. The Airport provides convenient air
passenger service to a host of destinations while safely delivering hundreds
of thousands of business and recreational travelers to Atlantic City and the
Southern New Jersey shore region.

Economic Impact
The SJTA contributes to economic growth throughout Atlantic, Camden,
Cape May, Cumberland, Gloucester, and Salem counties. The Authority
accomplishes this through the acquisition, maintenance, operation and
support of expressway, airport, transit, parking and other transportation projects
and services that help safely move people and commerce.
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Atlantic City Expressway
SJTA Receives Outstanding ITS Project Award

The Intelligent
Transportation Society
of New Jersey (ITSNJ)
presented the SJTA with
an Outstanding ITS Project
award at the ITSNJ’s
2015 Annual Meeting.
The award recognized the
newly implemented Central Monitoring and Control Software project. The software
manages traffic operations and control systems for the Atlantic City Brigantine
Connector (ACBC) tunnel. The monitoring system is composed of multiple devices
and systems deployed along the ACBC, including Digital Signs, IP Video Cameras,
Fire Detection Sensors, Over-Height Vehicle Detection Sensors, and Tunnel
Ventilation and Incident Response Management Systems.
The control system is monitored at the tunnel and the SJTA Communications
Command Center via centralized software and an impressive video wall. The
monitoring system is set up in a redundant configuration so that, in the event
of a disaster affecting one of the monitoring sites, another monitoring site
can seamlessly take control of Tunnel Operations. Project highlights include
consolidating numerous ITS software systems onto a single software platform,
improving incident tracking & reporting, and integrating ITS devices across the rest
of the Expressway. This project significantly improved the operation of the tunnel
monitoring systems, making them more stable while streamlining the system for
end users by creating a single interface through which alarms can be received,
device status can be monitored, and field devices can be controlled.
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Violations Reduction Enforcement Program
In 2014, the ITT Department implemented
an upgrade of the ACE toll system including
new lane controllers and sub-system
components at all ramp toll locations,
in addition to replacement of Violation
Enforcement System (VES) cameras. This
drastically improved overall system reliability
and image performance, resulting in more
accurate and efficient video enforcement.
Furthermore, the Authority continued
implementing a NJ Motor Vehicle Commission (MVC) suspension pilot program
established in 2013. Under this program, Authority staff works with the NJ E-ZPass
Customer Service Center to identify habitual ACE violators who then receive a notice
of potential vehicle registration suspension. To avoid suspension, individuals are given
an opportunity to enter into settlement agreements that may extend their payment
terms up to 36 months.

Egg Harbor Toll Plaza

Pleasantville Toll Plaza
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YEAR

ANNUAL TOLL TRAFFIC AND TOLL REVENUES
TOLL TRAFFIC

TOLL REVENUE

TOTAL SJTA

PERCENT

REVENUES

FROM TOLLS

2015

51,121,893

$76,141,803

$107,089,866

71.1%

2014

50,985,868

$74,956,149

$105,082,910

71.3%

2013

52,079,719

$76,124,544

$104,981,542

72.5%

2012

52,995,151

$77,569,176

$107,021,581

72.5%

2011

53,382,708

$76,895,065

$106,046,142

72.5%

2010

54,977,031

$78,914,150

$108,654,245

72.6%

2009

58,432,437

$82,162,229

$109,632,566

74.9%

2008

66,961,243

$63,476,068

$91,605,689

69.3%

2007

66,728,789

$61,830,498

$89,416,482

69.1%

2006

66,820,291

$59,477,706

$83,676,217

71.1%

2005

64,594,708

$57,970,661

$82,007,410

70.7%

2004

63,036,743

$57,247,411

$78,771,768

72.7%

2003

60,332,338

$51,190,087

$59,488,734

86.0%

2002

59,000,044

$48,525,003

$56,373,284

86.1%

2001

54,415,354

$45,853,899

$58,712,782

78.1%

2000

50,619,351

$44,322,412

$56,594,079

78.3%

1999

48,050,179

$44,434,942

$57,923,324

76.7%

1998

50,855,587

$27,444,172

$35,321,293

77.7%

1997

49,290,846

$25,056,326

$31,958,892

78.4%

1996

46,243,612

$23,932,905

$30,498,288

78.5%

1995

47,602,146

$24,257,677

$31,458,000

77.1%

1994

48,023,048

$24,218,472

$30,713,109

78.9%

1993

46,262,939

$23,429,336

(SJTA begins)

N/A

1992

44,901,487

$22,779,560

$25,935,604

87.8%

Atlantic City Expressway
Annual Toll Traffic
1992-2015

Atlantic City Expressway E-ZPass usage over the last ten years.
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2.1%

1.5%

-0.3%

1.2%

6.2%

8.2%

0.3%

-1.8%

-1.1%

1.6%

4.2%

5.0%

1.1%

14.8%

-2.1%

EGG HARBOR

TOTAL

-2.9%

-1.7%

ROUTE 50

2.5%

2.2%

CROSS KEYS

MAYS LANDING

10.3%

-5.6%

WINSLOW

POMONA

-2.8%

2014

HAMMONTON

PLEASANTVILLE

2015

NEW ROAD

YEAR

WILLIAMSTOWN

ANNUAL TOLL TRAFFIC INCREASE OR DECREASE BY LOCATION

2013

-1.8%

3.8%

-1.2%

-0.6%

-2.5%

-1.9%

6.0%

-4.0%

-1.1%

10.1%

-1.7%

2012

-2.0%

-1.7%

0.1%

-3.5%

1.7%

0.4%

-1.0%

-3.1%

0.3%

10.7%

-0.8%
-2.9%

2011

-2.3%

-1.4%

-1.7%

-2.9%

-3.9%

0.1%

-2.2%

-7.5%

-0.4%

76.4%

2010

-10.2%

-4.6%

-1.3%

-11.6%

-2.9%

2.4%

2.0%

-2.6%

1.6%

-6.1%

-5.9%

2009

-15.4%

-11.3%

-17.7%

-18.4%

-6.4%

-2.0%

-8.5%

-12.5%

-17.5%

N/A

-12.7%

2008

6.4%

-6.0%

2.1%

-4.4%

-5.4%

-3.9%

-1.0%

-1.0%

-1.9%

0.4%

2007

-0.1%

9.7%

4.8%

-0.7%

-1.5%

-0.5%

-0.8%

-0.9%

1.3%

-0.1%

2006

3.7%

8.7%

6.3%

1.6%

2.2%

2.1%

4.7%

3.1%

7.9%

3.4%

2005

3.1%

7.5%

2.4%

1.8%

1.2%

0.0%

-1.9%

3.7%

5.1%

2.5%
4.4%

2004

1.7%

17.5%

3.2%

4.3%

5.7%

6.6%

7.6%

6.7%

13.0%

2003

-1.1%

58.2%

2.9%

4.0%

2.1%

1.5%

-61.6%

2.2%

170.7%

2002

8.1%

N/A

2.0%

15.8%

6.6%

4.8%

-28.9%

4.6%

N/A

2.1%
8.6%

2001

4.6%

4.6%

13.6%

5.3%

5.0%

68.0%

2.6%

7.5%

2000

0.0%

8.9%

9.2%

2.4%

10.9%

193.5%

11.4%

5.3%
-5.5%

1999

-6.1%

-11.3%

-9.9%

-5.6%

6.7%

2.1%

2.4%

1998

3.5%

2.7%

5.6%

2.6%

0.7%

5.5%

1.7%

3.2%

1997

1.5%

99.3%

13.4%

4.7%

4.5%

5.0%

6.5%

6.6%

1996

-7.6%

34.8%

-1.3%

0.1%

0.6%

1.2%

4.6%

-2.9%

1995

-2.8%

-5.2%

-0.8%

2.6%

-2.3%

-0.3%

-0.4%

-0.9%

1994

4.4%

4.7%

2.4%

2.9%

2.1%

6.2%

5.3%

3.8%

1993

4.0%

6.8%

-0.4%

3.1%

0.5%

4.1%

-1.1%

3.0%

1992

5.1%

8.2%

8.1%

1.6%

4.5%

3.0%

3.7%

4.1%

MOTORIST AIDS BY EMERGENCY SERVICE PATROL
Dead Battery
Flat Tire
Accidents

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

597

570

606

680

678

2015
603

2,729

2,664

2,528

3,036

3,269

3,336

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

807

Mechanical

1,741

2,672

2,141

2,676

3,584

3,046

Out of Gas

930

931

804

873

816

807

Overheat

520

525

509

590

636

595

Directions

529

779

654

724

756

746

1,748

3,611

3,706

3,627

3,637

3,659

991

1,357

1,829

2,248

1,945

1,691

9,785

13,109

12,777

14,454

15,321

15,290

Request for Tow Truck
Other
Total

When a motorist on the Atlantic City Expressway has
a problem, he or she can count on getting quick help
from our Emergency Service Patrols. Their vehicles
make continuous circuits along the 44-mile Expressway,
stopping whenever they see a vehicle pulled off to the
side of the roadway. This free service helps keep our
commuters moving along efficiently every day of the year.
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SJTA Standout Events
Earth Day
On April 22, 2015, SJTA representatives participated in the
Expressway’s Earth Day/Storm Water presentation to local
elementary students. This event included fun-filled tips
on stewardship and the planting of two trees. It was well
received by over 520 students and staff. Earth Day and
other programs continued into the summer as part of the
Authority’s outreach efforts to inform children about the
importance of caring for the environment, storm water
runoff and clean water throughout the State of New Jersey.

100 Days of Summer
On May 22, 2015, the Authority held its annual
“100 Days of Summer” event, (previously known
as Safety Day). The event kicked off the summer
season and included displays by the State
Police Marine Bureau, a live radio broadcast,
and sponsored tolls by Chickie’s and Pete’s at
the Egg Harbor Plaza east-bound from 5:00
p.m. to 6:00 p.m. The afternoon event featured
giveaways, special guests, free food, and
safety demonstrations by several New Jersey
transportation agencies to ensure a safe and
memorable summer at the shore. The event is
co-hosted by HMS Host.
10
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Show us Your Ride
On April 24, 2015, the SJTA held its “Show us Your Ride” Atlantic City Expressway
Classic Car Show. Eighty classic vehicles (30 more than the previous show),
from as early as 1926 were on display on a beautiful spring day.

Our Classic Car Show is free and open to the public to
enter and allows you to vote for your favorite classic
car. The event was held at the Frank S. Farley Service
Plaza on the Atlantic City Expressway and featured a
live radio broadcast and interviews with the top award
winners. Classic cars, from exotics to hotrods, were
lined up on the southern side of the plaza. Awards were
given out in categories, such as People’s Choice, Best
in Show and Best Muscle Car.
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Wildflowers Beautify ACE
The South Jersey Transportation Authority’s Wildflowers Program beautifies
sections of the Expressway during the high traffic summer months. Expanding
every year, it has achieved national recognition by highway authorities across the
country. Wildflowers are maintained within the roadway median and shoulder areas

during the spring, summer and fall. In addition to their beauty, the wildflower areas
reduce the manpower needed to mow and in turn reduce energy costs to power
the equipment. ACE’s wildflower areas are seeded with a mix of cosmos pink blush
perennials with a scattering of whites, reds and orange mixed in.
If you have driven on the Atlantic City Expressway, then it is likely you have seen
the lively wildflowers thriving along the roadway. The Authority’s initiative covers
more than 23 acres and helps to remove pollutants from roadway runoff and even
stabilizes the ground which keeps topsoil from eroding into our
streams and waterways.
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Transportation Services

While public transportation in
Gloucester County is currently
available north to south, there
was a shortage of reliable
transportation traveling east
to west. The Pureland East-West Community Shuttle, which began in June, 2015 filled
that gap. The route was specifically started to improve accessibility to work locations
and other destinations for several disadvantaged communities. Unsurprisingly, Pureland
continues to grow in popularity and ridership every month.
The Pureland Shuttle was started with long-range goals including increasing mobility
and accessibility, promoting economic development, multimodal transportation support,
traffic reduction, and limiting transportation impacts on the natural environment.
In 2015, Transportation
Services applied for, and
was awarded a Congestion
Management Air Quality
(CMAQ) grant from
the Federal Highway
Administration for three
natural gas buses to be
utilized for this route
and its riders.
The SJTA continues to
explore other areas
where routes similar to
Pureland would provide
the most economic and
social impact.
13
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Broadband Technology
Opportunity Program
The State of New Jersey Office of Homeland
Security and Preparedness (OHSP) is
administering and coordinating a federal grant
awarded to the State of New Jersey for the
Broadband Technology Opportunity Program
(BTOP) 700 MHz LTE Broadband Project. The
project will provide enhanced communication
and data sharing abilities for public safety
stakeholders to more effectively prepare and
respond to emergencies and disasters. To do
so, the OHSP has identified the Authority’s New
York Avenue Garage rooftop in Atlantic City as a
site to host its BTOP Project network equipment.
The OHSP will be supplying new technologies
and applications through the LTE System and
will allow the Authority to access and operate
over the LTE System network at no cost. The
Authority is participating in the BTOP project to
further the interests of domestic preparedness.

2015 ACY Parking
Layout and Rates
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Atlantic City International Airport

Taxiway K Rehabilitation
“State of Good Repair”
The Authority completed the
$2.4 million design and construction of
the rehabilitation of Taxiway Kilo in the fall
of 2015. The Authority was successful in
receiving an Airport Improvement Program
(AIP) Grant from the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) that covered 90% of
the costs of this “State of Good Repair” project. The rehabilitation of Taxiway Kilo
provided infrastructure improvements to allow for the safe and efficient travel of
aircraft that use the airport’s runway and taxiway system. The airfield is utilized by
commercial carriers, general aviation aircraft, United States Coast Guard, William J.
Hughes FAA Technical Center and the New Jersey Air National Guard 177th Fighter
Wing. Major work elements included replacement of the concrete surfaces, lighting
replacement, new thermoplastic taxiway markings, and drainage improvements.
The Authority has now rehabilitated almost all of the taxiways at ACY since taking
ownership of the airport.
15
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American Pharaoh Lands at ACY
One of the most celebrated
passengers to ever pass through
ACY, American Pharaoh, landed on
July 29th, receiving star treatment
and a great deal of media attention.
The American thoroughbred flew
equine first class on a cross-country
flight landing at the Airport and
headed north on the Garden State
Parkway, en route to Monmouth
Park, where he was victorious in
winning the Haskell Invitational.
Our congratulations go out to this
exceptional colt for his win of the
last race of his career, the Breeders
Cup Classic, and for becoming the
first horse to sweep the “Grand
Slam” of horse racing.
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Regional Progress/Energy Initiative
Energy Auction
On November 19, 2015 the SJTA
conducted an online reverse energy
auction to procure a third party energy
supplier. The successful auction
resulted in the Authority entering into
three contracts to provide almost
13 million kWhs of electric energy to
SJTA facilities for a 24 month period.
The contracts entered into by the
Authority also guarantee that 25% of
the electric supplied will be generated
from renewable wind energy. By
including this renewable energy source
in our contracts, the Authority has
achieved its renewable energy goal.
Anticipated savings over the course
of the contract are expected
to be $250,000.00.

South Jersey Transportation Authority’s Capital Plan 2015 - 2024
SJTA’S CAPITAL PLAN
2015 - 2024

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

TOTAL BRIDGE ASSETS

4,150,000

4,450,000

1,000,000

2,700,000

6,000,000

6,700,000

1,500,000

2,200,000

1,500,000

2,200,000

32,400,000

TOTAL ROAD ASSETS

1,640,000

2,615,000

2,615,000

2,890,000

2,710,000

2,775,000

2,710,000

2,850,000

2,710,000

2,775,000

26,290,000

TOTAL HIGHWAY FACILITIES ASSETS

140,422

171,831

173,267

2,479,733

1,108,227

1,099,752

546,307

1,135,893

622,511

694,161

8,172,104

TOTAL SAFETY MANAGEMENT ASSETS

360,000

420,000

420,000

905,000

790,000

665,000

640,000

790,000

640,000

640,000

6,270,000

TOTAL CONGESTION RELIEF

600,000

0

0

120,000,000

70,000,000

70,000,000

0

0

0

0

260,600,000

TOTAL CAPITAL EQUIPMENT

2,111,750

2,700,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

28,811,750

TOTAL ROADWAY

$9,002,172

$10,356,831

$7,208,267

$131,974,733

$83,608,227

$84,239,752

$8,396,307

$9,975,893

$8,472,511

$9,309,161

$362,543,854

TOTAL AIRPORT

$8,986,978

$4,298,586

$18,950,258

$20,885,477 $51,683,287

$1,884,133

$1,211,016

$2,062,936

$327,920,337

$17,989,150

$14,655,417

$26,158,525

$219,608,696 $213,931,930 $105,125,229 $60,079,594

$11,860,026

$9,683,527 $11,372,097

$690,464,191

TOTAL ROADWAY & AIRPORT

$87,633,963 $130,323,703

2023

TOTAL 10
YEAR PLAN

2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Chairman and Commissioners of
South Jersey Transportation Authority
Hammonton, New Jersey
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the South Jersey Transportation Authority
(the “Authority”), a component unit of the State of New Jersey, as of and for the year ended December
31, 2015, with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the South Jersey Transportation Authority as of December 31, 2015, and
the changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis identified in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as a whole. The accompanying Other
Supplementary Information as listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not part of the basic financial statements. These statements and schedules have not
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 29, 2016
on our consideration of the South Jersey Transportation Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the South Jersey
Transportation Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Ford, Scott & Associates, L.L.C.
FORD, SCOTT & ASSOCIATES, L.L.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Leon P. Costello
Leon P. Costello
Certified Public Accountant
April 29, 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report – Government Auditing Standards

To the Chairman and Commissioners of
South Jersey Transportation Authority
Hammonton, New Jersey
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial statement audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the
South Jersey Transportation Authority (“Authority”), State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated April 29, 2016.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the South Jersey
Transportation Authority’s control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the South
Jersey Transportation Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Authority’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the South Jersey Transportation Authority’s
basic financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of basic financial statement amounts. However,
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providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Ford, Scott & Associates, L.L.C.

FORD, SCOTT & ASSOCIATES, L.L.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Leon P. Costello
Leon P. Costello
Certified Public Accountant
April 29, 2016
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

{THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK}

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OVERVIEW
South Jersey Transportation Authority (“SJTA” or the “Authority”) was created in 1991 and became the
successor to the New Jersey Expressway Authority and the Atlantic County Transportation Authority and
operates the Atlantic City Expressway, the Atlantic City International Airport and provides transportation
services to riders in the areas served. The vision of SJTA is to be a leader in transportation, safely
moving people and commerce, to stimulate the economy now and into the future. The mission of the
Authority is to provide the traveling public with safe and efficient transportation through the acquisition,
construction, maintenance, operation and support of expressway, airport, transit, parking, other
transportation projects and services that support the economies of Atlantic, Camden, Cape May,
Cumberland, Gloucester and Salem Counties.
The Authority operates under the following Core Values:
Safety - Maintain high standards in safety and security for our employees and the traveling public.
Innovation - Translate new ideas into solutions and improvements through technology and human
resources.
Professionalism - Conduct ourselves ethically and with integrity worthy of the public trust.
Diversity - Provide a multicultural workforce, access to procurement opportunities and transportation
services.
Excellence - Commit to the highest standards of customer service delivery.
Our discussion and analysis of the South Jersey Transportation Authority’s (SJTA) financial performance
provides an overview of the Authority’s financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2015. Please
read it in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements that begin on Page 13.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS


Operating Revenue
SJTA realized operating revenue of $107 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared
to $105 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, an increase of 2%. Toll revenue, which
accounts for 71% of operating revenue amounted to $76 million, an increase of 1.6% over the prior
year. This represents the first increase in toll revenue in four years. In addition, toll revenue for 2015
came in 3% over budget. Traffic on the Atlantic City Expressway (ACE) increased slightly in 2015
when compared with 2014. The increase can be attributable to an improvement in the national
economy with more travelers heading to New Jersey shore locations.
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Consistent with greater toll revenue, Electronic Toll Collection (ETC) Administration revenue in 2015
increased 17% over 2014. This increase is primarily due to the new video monitoring equipment
installed by the Authority in 2014 as well as the increase in traffic.
Transportation Services 2015 revenues increased 12% as compared to 2014. The Transportation
Services Division has taken on additional routes addressing the transportation needs of riders in
SJTA’s service area.
Scheduled service passengers using the Atlantic City Airport in 2015 increased 1% over the number
of scheduled service passengers in 2014. Overall passenger traffic decreased 1% due to a decrease
in charter service passengers. Airport revenue increased 6% for the year ended December 31, 2015
when compared to 2014. The increase in the Airport revenue was primarily driven by a 13% increase
in parking facility revenue at the airport.


Operating Expenses
Operating expenses before depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2015 came in at
$69.2 million, a $1.7 million or 2.5% increase as compared to the year ended December 31, 2014.
This was primarily due to the implementation of the new pension accounting pronouncement. Actual
operating expenses for 2015 were 5% lower than budgeted operating expenses. The Authority
closely monitored spending and made significant expense cuts in order to maintain operating
margins.
This resulted in net operating income for 2015 of $4.0, the same as $4.0 million for 2014.
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New Accounting Pronouncement
In 2015, SJTA implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncement No.
68 which requires governmental entities to record their net pension liability on the statement of net
position of the organization. The Authority participates in two pension plans administered by the
State of New Jersey – the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) and the Police and
Firemen’s Retirement System (PFRS). These pension systems are considered multi-employer, costsharing plans.
SJTA’s net pension liability for the two plans was $48.3 million at December 31, 2014 and was
recorded as a restatement of beginning net position at January 1, 2015. The net pension liability at
December 31, 2015 was $59.9 million and is recorded as a noncurrent liability in the statement of net
position.



Investment in Infrastructure
Atlantic City International Airport
In 2015, the Authority completed several key infrastructure improvements at ACY. These projects
include the perimeter fence project of $1.1 million, Taxiway K rehabilitation of $2.4 million and
terminal roof repairs of $.5 million.
Several projects were initiated in 2015 or are ongoing from 2014 including the deicing pad/recovery
system for $1.6 million, airfield pavement upgrade of $1.1 million, the checkpoint escalator of $1.1
million and the loading bridge replacement of $.9 million.
Many of the capital projects at the Airport are funded in large part by grants obtained from the Federal
Aviation Administration (FAA).
Atlantic City Expressway
The annual paving rehabilitation project for 2015 included eastbound expressway from Milepost 9.0 to
Milepost 4.5 and related deceleration lanes and off-ramps with ADA curb ramp and inlet casting
replacement at a cost of $1.5 million.
The new salt dome at the East Maintenance Yard at Interchange 5 in Pleasantville was completed in
2015 for a total cost of $750 thousand. The new facility doubles the Authority’s storage capacity for
road salt. In addition, the Authority updated its fleet of aging police vehicles by adding and equipping
10 new vehicles at a cost of $539 thousand.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE AUTHORITY
All of the Authority’s financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accrual of the current year’s revenues and
expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. Capital assets are
capitalized and, (except land and construction in progress), are depreciated over their useful lives.
Amounts are restricted for rehabilitation and repair, debt service and, where applicable, capital projects.
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
report information on all Authority assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in a manner similar to that
used by most private-sector companies. These two statements also report the Authority’s net position and
changes in them.
Net position increases both when revenues exceed expenses and when the Authority’s assets increase
without a corresponding increase in the Authority’s liabilities. It is important to note, however,
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depreciation’s negative impact on net position. Depreciation decreases the Authority’s net position even
though it is a non-cash expense and may represent a write off against a contributed capital item paid for
by a federal grant or private source. Net position also increases or decreases when new accounting
pronouncements are implemented, as in the case of the GASB No. 68 in 2015. Restatement of opening
net position is done to retroactively implement the effects of the accounting pronouncement even though
it is a non-cash charge.
The Statement of Cash Flows presents information about the Authority’s relevant sources and uses of
cash for the year. It is prepared in a manner that summarizes (1) cash flows from operations, (2) noncapital financing activities, (3) capital and related financing activities and (4) investing activities.
Specifically, the Statement of Cash Flows, together with related disclosures and information on other
financial statements, can be useful in assessing the following:





Ability of an entity to generate future cash flows
Ability of an entity to pay its debt as the debt matures
The need to seek outside financing
Reasons for differences between cash flows from operations and operating income

Financial Analysis of the Statement of Net Position
Below is a summarized Statement of Net Position as of December 31, 2015 with comparative totals as of
December 31, 2014:
Comparative Condensed Statements of Net Position as of December 31,
2015
Unrestricted Assets
Restricted Assets
Capital Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Unrestricted Liabilities
Current Restricted Liabilities
OPEB Liability
Net Pension Liability
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources

2014

$

61,650,288
106,227,820
645,658,692
12,247,439

$

57,727,591
105,398,340
664,612,798
2,024,531

$

825,784,240

$

829,763,260

$

8,685,468
25,016,102
89,842,866
59,906,599
458,512,626
1,794,210

$

6,835,399
24,744,433
85,677,277
467,513,823
-

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflow of Resources

643,757,871

584,770,932

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted Net Position
Related to Net Pension Liability
Unfunded OPEB Deficit
Funded OPEB Obligation

205,106,117
60,721,305
49,948,412
(59,906,599)
(89,842,866)
16,000,000

219,056,026
65,173,864
32,439,715
(85,677,277)
14,000,000

Total Net Position

182,026,369

244,992,328

$
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825,784,240

$

829,763,260

Unrestricted assets increased by $3.9 million primarily due to an increase in unrestricted cash and cash
equivalents of $2.9 million, an increase in unrestricted investments of $1.2 million offset by a decrease in
prepaid expenses of $364 thousand.
Restricted assets increased by $829 in 2015 mainly due to an overall increase in restricted cash and
investments of $1.5 million with a decrease in restricted accounts receivable of $786 thousand.
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, decreased by a net of $19 million. Depreciation during
the year was $34 million while additions amounted to $15 million.
Deferred outflows of resources increased $10.2 million as a result of the implementation of the new
pension accounting pronouncement.
Current unrestricted liabilities increased $1.9 million primarily due to an increase in accounts payable of
$1.6 due to the timing of payments at year end and an increase in deferred income of $325 thousand.
Increase in OPEB liability - In 2007, the Authority had implemented GASB Statement No.45 “Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Employers for Post-employment Benefits Other than Pensions” (“GASB 45”).
This Statement establishes the standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of Other Postemployment Benefits (“OPEB”) expense and related liabilities, note disclosures, and if applicable,
required supplementary information (“RSI”) in the financial reports of state and local governmental
employers.
Post-employment benefits are part of an exchange of salaries and benefits for employee services
rendered. Most OPEB expenses have been funded on a pay-as-you-go basis and have been reported in
the financial statements when the promised benefits are paid. GASB 45 requires state and local
government’s financial reports to reflect systematic, accrual-basis measurement and recognition of OPEB
costs over a period that approximates employees’ years of service and provides information about
actuarial accrued liabilities associated with the OPEB and whether and to what extent progress is being
made in funding the plan.
The Authority’s total unfunded actuarial accrued liability at December 31, 2015, was $89.8 million, up $4.2
million from the December 31, 2014 liability.
Since 2008, the Authority has implemented a funding plan for the OPEB liability. $2 million annually is
contributed to an OPEB account which is recorded as a restricted asset on the Statement of Net Position.
At December 31, 2015, the funded portion of the OPEB obligation is $16 million and the estimated market
value of the accounts was $17.5 million. The OPEB assets are not in a third party trust.
The net pension liability of $59.9 million represents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability of the State of New Jersey’s multi-employer, cost sharing pension plans. This liability and how it is
determined is discussed in greater detail in the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
The decrease in other noncurrent liabilities of $9 million represents principal payments made on bonds
payable.
Deferred outflows of resources of $1.8 million resulted from the implementation of the new pension
accounting pronouncement.

Financial Analysis of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Below is a summarized Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position as of December
31, 2015 with comparative totals as of December 31, 2014:
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Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Totals for the Years Ended December 31,
2015
Operating Revenues

$

107,177,324

Operating Expenses

2014
$

105,082,910

(103,206,614)

(101,107,292)

(25,461,645)

(45,343,031)

6,842,000

8,185,042

Change in Net Position

(14,648,935)

(33,182,371)

Net Position -- Beginning

244,992,328

278,174,699

Effect of Change in Accounting

(48,317,024)

Non-Operating Income (Expense)
Capital Contributions

Net Position -- Ending

$

182,026,369

$

244,992,328

Operating revenues increased $2.1 million primarily as a result of an increase in toll revenue of $1.2
million and an increase in electronic toll collection revenue of $607 thousand.
The increase in operating expenses of $2.1 thousand is primarily due to the implementation of the new
pension accounting pronouncement offset by an overall decrease in other operating expenses before
depreciation million due to cost saving measures undertaken by the Authority throughout the year.
Net non-operating expense decreased $19.9 as a result of the swap termination payment expense net of
realization of deferred revenue related to the swap in 2014 for $21.7 million and a larger increase in the
OPEB liability of $1.5 in 2015 than in 2014.
Capital Contributions received during the year decreased by $1.3 million. This decrease was primarily
attributed to a decrease in Passenger Facility Charges (“PFC”) revenue recognized of $1.1 million.

AIRPORT SUBSIDY
The Authority’s enabling legislation created the South Jersey Transportation Authority to deal with
regional transportation issues. Included in the legislation were the powers to acquire and operate the
Atlantic City International Airport. The available surplus, net revenue generated by the Atlantic City
Expressway project, has historically been available to subsidize the airport operations as was anticipated
in the legislation and clearly presented in the original documents adopted by the Authority. The airport
project is considered a general project under the Authority’s General Bond Resolution and payment of
any airport subsidy (excess of airport expenses over airport revenues) is subordinate to payments to
bond holders under the Authority’s General Bond Resolution and payable from the general reserve fund.
Prior to September 11, 2001, the airport subsidy was steadily decreasing; in fact for the year ended
December 31, 2000, the airport generated a small operating surplus. However, the subsidy has been
increasing since the events of September 11, 2001 due to revenue losses resulting from declines in the
airline industry and expense increases resulting from additional requirements including fulltime police
presence and increased insurance costs.
In an effort to stimulate air service development, the Authority has entered into a management agreement
with the Port Authority of New York/New Jersey (“Port Authority”). Under the terms of this agreement the
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Port Authority shall provide general management services (the “Services”) to the SJTA in connection with
Atlantic City International Airport operations for the use and benefit of the general public during the term.
Such management services shall include conducting the daily operations of the Airport in conjunction with
the SJTA enabling Act, N.J.S.A. 27:25A-1 et seq., and its bylaws, as well as the FAA Operating
Certificate. In performing its responsibilities under this Agreement, the Port Authority shall do so in a
manner normally associated with sound, safe, innovative, prudent and efficient airport management and
shall provide all services as are customary and normal in conformance with SJTA policies and
procedures, and all other applicable laws, rules and regulations. In addition to the above, the Port
Authority’s Services shall include, but not limited to, Air Service Development, Concessions, Parking
Operations, Capital Improvement Plan, Operating Budget and Plan, Capital Plan, Revenue Generating
and Cost Savings Initiatives, and Press and Media Releases. The SJTA has agreed to pay an annual
Management Fee during the term of the agreement in the amount of $500,000 in equal monthly
installments which began on August 1, 2013.
The airport subsidy was lower than the previous year. The airport subsidy, net of depreciation and debt
service was $4,357,284 for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared with $5,241,453 in 2014, a
decrease of 17%, not including debt service on airport bonds

USING THIS FINANCIAL REPORT
This financial report consists of a series of financial statements, notes to the financial statements and
supplementary information. The Basic Financial Statements consist of the Statement of Net Position, the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (“Operating Statement”) and the
Statement of Cash Flows (on Pages 13 - 18) that provide information about the activities of the Authority
as a single enterprise fund. An enterprise fund uses proprietary fund reporting that focuses on the
determination of operating income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial position and cash
flows.
Proprietary Fund financial statements for the Authority’s two main funds start on Page 19. These
financial statements report the Authority’s operations in more detail than the Basic Financial Statements
by providing information about the Authority’s most significant funds. The Authority’s two major operating
entities, which are being reported separately in the Proprietary Fund financial statements, are the Atlantic
City Expressway and the Atlantic City International Airport. Common costs for these two major operating
entities are generally assigned to the Expressway. Fund financial statements are also included in the
Other Supplementary Information on Pages 72 - 80. Fund financial statements report the Authority’s
operations, in detail, for all of the funds of the Authority.
Some funds are required to be established by bond covenants, while the Authority establishes many
other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes. Resources are accounted for in
individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the restrictions, if any, on the
spending activities.
Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the financial statements.
Other Supplementary Information
In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
supplementary information concerning the Authority’s fund financial statements, bonds and other debt,
and toll revenue and vehicle count.
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Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide our commissioners, customers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the Authority’s finances and to show the Authority’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the
Director of Finance at the South Jersey Transportation Authority, Farley Service Plaza, Administration
Building, P.O. Box 351, Hammonton, NJ 08037.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Net Position
As of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals as of December 31, 2014
2015

2014

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Change Funds
Interest and Dividends Receivable
Accounts Receivable, Net
Grants Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
Security Deposits
Inventory

$

45,484,912
7,802,001
43,548
139,205
5,134,179
799,622
2,054,066
136,026
56,729

$

42,613,448
6,629,641
44,532
137,910
4,908,518
738,731
2,418,005
120,820
115,986

Total Unrestricted Assets

61,650,288

57,727,591

Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Grants Receivable
Interest Receivable

20,950,826
72,898,405
11,624,747
477,513
276,329

28,699,901
63,649,787
12,411,000
395,348
242,304

Total Restricted Assets

106,227,820

105,398,340

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land and Right of Ways
Construction in Progress

146,921,643
23,509,832

146,921,643
57,004,742

170,431,475

203,926,385

190,843,242
(74,080,864)

183,971,571
(63,149,026)

116,762,378

120,822,545

Infrastructure Capital Assets:
Infrastructure - Equipment
Infrastructure
Less Accumulated Depreciation

22,029,599
568,274,640
(231,839,400)

19,566,569
529,744,097
(209,446,798)

Total Infrastructure Capital Assets

358,464,839

339,863,868

813,536,800

827,738,729

10,531,339
1,716,100

2,024,531

12,247,439

2,024,531

Total Non-Depreciable Capital Assets
Non-Infrastructure Capital Assets:
Buildings and Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Non-Infrastructure Capital Assets

Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Related to Pensions
Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

$

825,784,240

See Independent Auditor's Report.
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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$

829,763,260

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Net Position
As of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals as of December 31, 2014
2015

2014

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Current Liabilities Payable From
Unrestricted Assets:
Accounts Payable
Deferred Income
Escrow Deposits
Accrued Expenses
Total Current Liabilities Payable
From Unrestricted Assets
Current Liabilities Payable From
Restricted Assets:
Accrued Interest
Accounts Payable
Retainages Payable
PFC Advanced
CFC Advanced
Reserve for Self-Insurance
Bonds Payable, Net of Discount and
Premiums of ($1,644,318)
Total Current Liabilities Payable
From Restricted Assets

$

6,389,337
738,063
120,072
1,437,996

$

4,771,626
412,682
108,273
1,542,818

8,685,468

6,835,399

3,599,874
1,639,831
242,496
2,321,651
1,363,776
6,625,822

2,619,320
1,446,719
620,235
1,277,217
1,010,499
7,230,985

9,014,318

10,331,124

25,016,102

24,744,433

35,000

35,000

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Expenses
Other Postemployment Benefits Other
than Pensions
Net Pension Liability
Bonds Payable, Net of Discount and
Premium of ($18,037,626)

89,842,866
59,906,599

85,677,277
-

458,477,626

467,478,823

Total Non-Current Liabilities

608,262,091

553,191,100

641,963,661

584,770,932

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Related to Pensions
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1,794,210

643,757,871

See Independent Auditor's Report.
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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-

584,770,932

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Net Position
As of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals as of December 31, 2014
2015

2014

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets

$

Restricted for:
Debt
ebt Se
Service
ce
Rehabilitation and Repair
Debt Service Reserve
State Payment
Capital Projects
Arbitrage Rebate
Subordinated Debt Fund

205,106,117

$

219,056,026

16,010,809
6,0 0,809
6,214,853
38,043,219
248
(9,210,474)
169
9,662,481

15,957,329
5,95 ,3 9
6,209,816
36,406,421
138
165,669
169
6,434,322

Unrestricted:
Unrestricted Net Position
Related to Net Pension Liability
Unfunded OPEB Deficit
Funded OPEB Obligation

49,948,412
(59,906,599)
(89,842,866)
16,000,000

32,439,715
(85,677,277)
14,000,000

Total Net Position

182,026,369

244,992,328

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

$

825,784,240

See Independent Auditor's Report.
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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$

829,763,260

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2014
2015
Operating Revenues:
Tolls
Concessions
ETC Administrative Revenue
Garage Parking
Marina Parking Revenue
Bus Permits
Rentals
Naming Rights
SJTPO Programs
Transportation Services
Other
Airport

$

76,141,803
1,673,931
4,191,531
282,912
2,755,446
167,630
4,065,241
155,439
1,922,222
3,429,540
378,973
12,012,656

2014
$

74,956,149
1,660,096
3,584,680
349,791
2,697,182
194,919
4,411,775
239,375
2,118,080
3,063,934
566,504
11,240,425

107,177,324

105,082,910

862,693
360,460
458,623
1,494,778
13,722,118
2,383,544
386,904
3,778,241
10,137,704
6,737,745
844,690
4,401,340
582,417
1,716,521
1,922,222
3,387,794
16,012,408
34,016,412

835,029
383,671
2,875,579
1,703,110
11,617,333
1,916,580
543,323
3,903,138
8,139,506
7,068,974
841,607
3,976,904
659,799
1,776,994
2,118,080

103,206,614

101,107,292

Operating Income

3,970,710

3,975,618

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest and Dividends
Market Value Adjustment on Investments
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Assets
Other Expenses
Bad Debt Expense
Swap Termination Expense
Cancellation of Deferred Revenue
(Increase) in OPEB Liability
Feeder Road Expense
Amortization of Bond Premium
Interest on Bonds
State Payment

2,461,789
(616,981)
20,922
(110,455)
(12,310)
(4,165,590)
1,760,198
(22,299,218)
(2,500,000)

3,421,435
787,242
931
(961,724)
(936)
(27,508,864)
5,828,116
(2,632,002)
(349,995)
1,344,334
(22,771,568)
(2,500,000)

Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Executive
Business Administration
Engineering
Finance
Central Accounts
Other Post-Employment Benefits
Marketing and Communications
Tourist Services and Bus Management
Maintenance
Police
Emergency Service Patrol
Electronic Toll Collection Expense
Parking - (Non Airport)
Information Services
SJTPO Programs
Transportation Services
Airport
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

2,928,223
16,194,391

33,625,051

(25,461,645)

(45,343,031)

(21,490,935)

(41,367,413)

6,842,000

8,185,042

Change in Net Position

(14,648,935)

(33,182,371)

Total Net Position -- Beginning

244,992,328

278,174,699

Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting

(48,317,024)

Total Net Position Balance -- Beginning
as adjusted

196,675,304

Total Non-Operating Income (Expense)
Loss before Capital Contributions
Capital Contributions

$

Total Net Position -- Ending

182,026,369

See Independent Auditor's Report.
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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278,174,699
$

244,992,328

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2014
2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers, users and grants
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

$

107,832,784
(45,398,525)
(19,742,792)

2014
$

104,137,198
(49,211,346)
(20,370,546)

Net cash provided by operating activities

42,691,467

34,555,306

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payment of State Payment Obligation

(2,500,000)

(2,708,332)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital grants
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Costs of Issuance
Swap termination payment
Other expenses
Payments for capital acquisitions
Feeder road expense
Principal paid on capital debt
Loans payments received
Proceeds from bonds Issued
Bond issue premium
Interest paid on capital debt

8,239,711
27,400
(110,455)
(15,083,623)
(8,665,000)
860,000.00
(21,734,141)

8,484,786
931
(961,724)
(27,508,864)
(26,689,952)
(349,995)
(128,120,000)
830,000
128,945,471
10,760,051
(23,729,788)

Net cash used by capital and
related financing activities

(36,466,108)

(58,339,084)

(15,118,897)
4,088,474
2,426,470

(10,648,692)
21,150,037
2,734,749

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

(8,603,953)

13,236,094

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(4,878,594)

(13,256,016)

71,357,880

84,613,897

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Interest and dividends

Balance - beginning of period
Balance - end of period

$

66,479,286

$

71,357,881

$

45,484,912
43,548
20,950,826
66,479,286

$

42,613,448
44,532
28,699,901
71,357,881

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Change Funds
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

$

See Independent Auditor's Report.
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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$

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2014
2015

2014

Reconciliation of operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income

$

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net
Grants receivable
Prepaid expenses
Security deposits
Inventories
Accounts and other payables
PFC and CFC advanced
Deferred income
Escrow deposits and reserves

3,970,710

$

34,016,412

33,625,051

560,593
(143,056)
363,938
(15,206)
59,257
4,146,802
325,381
(593,364)
$

Net cash provided by operating activities

42,691,467

3,975,618

(1,003,788)
201,192
(3,144)
(850)
2,757
(2,102,835)
(136,716)
(1,979)
$

34,555,306

Noncash capital financing activities:
Capital assets of $6,244,136 were acquired through contributions from governmental agencies and private developers.

18

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds
As of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals as of December 31, 2014
Totals
Expressway

Consolidation
Eliminations

Airport

2015

2014

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Change Funds
Interest and Dividends Receivable
Accounts Receivable, net
Grants Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
Security Deposits
Inventory
Interfunds Receivable

$

Total Unrestricted Assets
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Grants Receivable
Interest Receivable

43,640,479
7,802,001
33,035
139,205
4,388,665
799,622
1,748,079
134,495
56,729
4,839,115

$

1,844,433

(34,731,961)

45,484,912 $
7,802,001
43,548
139,205
5,134,179
799,622
2,054,066
136,026
56,729
-

42,613,448
6,629,641
44,532
137,910
4,908,518
738,731
2,418,005
120,820
115,986
-

(34,731,961)

61,650,288

57,727,591

20,950,826
72,898,405
11,624,747
477,513
276,329

28,699,901
63,649,787
12,411,000
395,348
242,304

-

106,227,820

105,398,340

-

146,921,642
23,509,832
170,431,474

146,921,643
57,004,742
203,926,385

-

190,843,243
(74,080,864)
116,762,379

183,971,571
(63,149,026)
120,822,545

19,566,569
529,744,097
(209,446,798)
339,863,868

$

10,513
745,514
305,987
1,531
29,892,846

63,581,425

32,800,824

11,597,069
51,865,420
11,624,747

9,353,757
21,032,985

$

477,513
276,329
75,363,565

30,864,255

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land and Right of Ways
Construction in Progress
Total Non-Depreciable Capital Assets

131,302,086
15,473,011
146,775,097

15,619,556
8,036,821
23,656,377

Non-Infrastructure Capital Assets:
Buildings and Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Non-Infrastructure Capital Assets

50,180,146
(34,450,604)
15,729,542

140,663,097
(39,630,260)
101,032,837

9,791,105
475,261,370
(192,401,800)
292,650,675

12,238,494
93,013,270
(39,437,600)
65,814,164

-

22,029,599
568,274,640
(231,839,400)
358,464,839

Total Capital Assets

455,155,314

190,503,378

-

645,658,692

664,612,798

Total Assets

594,100,304

254,168,457

813,536,800

827,738,729

8,144,243
1,630,303

2,387,096
85,797

10,531,339
1,716,100

2,024,531

9,774,546

2,472,893

12,247,439

2,024,531

Total Restricted Assets

Infrastructure Capital Assets:
Infrastructure - Equipment
Infrastructure
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Infrastructure Capital Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Related to Pensions
Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

$

603,874,850

$

256,641,351

See Independent Auditor's Report.
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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(34,731,961)

-

$

(34,731,961) $

825,784,240 $

829,763,260

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds
As of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals as of December 31, 2014
Expressway

Consolidation
Eliminations

Airport

Totals
2015

2014

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Current Liabilities Payable From
Unrestricted Assets:
Accounts Payable
Deferred Income
Escrow Deposits
Accrued Expenses
Interfunds Payable
Total Current Liabilities Payable
From Unrestricted Assets
Current Liabilities Payable From
Restricted Assets:
Accrued Interest
Accounts Payable
Retainages Payable
Due to Other Governmental Agencies
PFC Advanced
CFC Advanced
Reserve for Self-Insurance
Bonds Payable, Net of Discount and
Premiums of ($1,644,318)
Total Current Liabilities Payable
From Restricted Assets
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Expenses
Other Postemployment Benefits Other
than Pensions
Net Pension Liability
Bonds Payable, Net of Discount and
Premium of ($18,037,626)

$

4,604,038 $
533,275
44,958
1,090,761

1,785,299
204,788
75,114
347,235
34,731,961

(34,731,961)

(34,731,961)

8,685,468

6,835,399

5,543,983

2,321,651
1,363,776
1,081,839

3,599,874
1,639,831
242,496
208,334
2,321,651
1,363,776
6,625,822

2,619,320
1,446,719
620,235
208,334
1,277,217
1,010,499
7,230,985

7,686,317

1,328,001

9,014,318

10,331,124

16,809,515

8,206,587

25,016,102

24,744,433

35,000

35,000

37,144,397

2,837,160
436,139
97,582
208,334

762,714
1,203,692
144,914

$

-

35,000

$

4,771,626
412,682
108,273
1,542,818
-

6,389,337
738,063
120,072
1,437,996
-

6,273,032

$

76,190,714
48,724,078

13,652,152
11,182,521

89,842,866
59,906,599

85,677,277
-

363,393,720

95,083,906

458,477,626

467,478,823

Total Non-Current Liabilities

488,343,512

119,918,579

608,262,091

553,191,100

Total Liabilities

511,426,059

165,269,563

641,963,661

584,770,932

1,367,042

427,168

-

1,794,210

-

1,367,042

427,168

-

1,794,210

-

512,793,101

165,696,731

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Related to Pensions
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

See Independent Auditor's Report.
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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(34,731,961)

(34,731,961)

643,757,871

584,770,932

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds
As of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals as of December 31, 2014

Expressway

Airport

107,320,513 $

97,785,604

Consolidation
Eliminations

Totals
2015

2014

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets

$

Restricted for:
Debt Service
Rehabilitation and Repair
Debt Service Reserve
State Payment
Capital Projects
A bit
Arbitrage
R
Rebate
b t
Subordinated Debt Fund
Unrestricted:
Unrestricted Net Position
Related to Net Pension Liability
Unfunded OPEB/(Deficit)
Funded OPEB Obligation
Total Net Position
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
$
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

16,008,874
6,214,853

1,935

20,982,598

17,060,621

248
(8,767,976)
169
9,662,481

(442,498)

50,968,830
(48,724,078)
(76,190,714)
13,605,951

(1,020,418)
(11,182,521)
(13,652,152)
2,394,049

91 081 749
91,081,749

90 944 620
90,944,620

603,874,850

$

256,641,351

See Independent Auditor's Report.
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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$ 205,106,117

-

$

$

219,056,026

16,010,809
6,214,853
38,043,219
248
(9,210,474)
169
9,662,481

15,957,329
6,209,816
36,406,421
138
165,669
169
6,434,322

49,948,412
(59,906,599)
(89,842,866)
16,000,000

32,439,715
(85,677,277)
14,000,000

182 026 369
182,026,369

244 992 328
244,992,328

(34,731,961) $ 825,784,240

$

829,763,260

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Operating Revenues:
Tolls
Concessions
ETC Administrative Revenue
Parking - Non-Airport
Marina Parking Revenue
Bus Permits
Rentals
Naming Rights
SJTPO Programs
Transportation Services
Other
Airport

$

76,141,803
1,673,931
4,191,531
282,912
2,755,446
167,630
4,065,241
155,439
1,922,222
3,429,540
378,973
$

Operating Expenses:
Executive
Business Administration
Engineering
Finance
Central Accounts
Other Post-Employment Benefits
Marketing and Communications
Toll Services and Bus Management
Maintenance
Police
Emergency Service Patrol
Electronic Toll Collection Expense
Parking - Non-Airport
Information Services
SJTPO Programs
Transportation Services
Airport
Depreciation

12,012,656
12,012,656

862,693
360,460
458,623
1,494,778
13,722,118
2,026,012
386,904
3,778,241
10,137,704
6,737,745
844,690
4,401,340
582,417
1,716,521
1,922,222
3,387,794

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

Totals
2015
$

95,164,668

Total Operating Revenues

Consolidation
Eliminations

Airport

Expressway

$

-

357,532

2014

76,141,803
1,673,931
4,191,531
282,912
2,755,446
167,630
4,065,241
155,439
1,922,222
3,429,540
378,973
12,012,656

$

74,956,149
1,660,096
3,584,680
349,791
2,697,182
194,919
4,411,775
239,375
2,118,080
3,063,934
566,504
11,240,425

107,177,324

105,082,910

862,693
360,460
458,623
1,494,778
13,722,118
2,383,544
386,904
3,778,241
10,137,704
6,737,745
844,690
4,401,340
582,417
1,716,521
1,922,222
3,387,794
16,012,408
34,016,412

835,029
383,671
2,875,579
1,703,110
11,617,333
1,916,580
543,323
3,903,138
8,139,506
7,068,974
841,607
3,976,904
659,799
1,776,994
2,118,080
2,928,223
16,194,391
33,625,051

22,468,249

16,012,408
11,548,163

75,288,511

27,918,103

-

103,206,614

101,107,292

19,876,157

(15,905,447)

-

3,970,710

3,975,618

2,461,789
(616,981)
20,922
(110,455)
(12,310)
(4,165,590)
1,760,198
(22,299,218)
(2,500,000)

3,421,435
787,242
931
(961,724)
(936)
(27,508,864)
5,828,116
(2,632,002)
(349,995)
1,344,334
(22,771,568)
(2,500,000)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest and Dividends
Market Value Adjustment on Investments
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Assets
Other Expenses
Bad Debt Expense
Swap Termination Expense
Cancellation of Deferred Revenue
(Increase) in OPEB Liability
Feeder Road Expense
Amortization of Bond Premium
Interest on Bonds
State Payment

2,459,292
(616,981)
20,922
(110,455)
(12,310)
(3,540,751)
1,760,198
(17,689,358)
(2,500,000)

Non-Operating Income (Expense)
Income (Loss) before Contributions
and Transfers
Capital Contributions

2,497

(624,839)

(4,609,860)

(20,229,443)

(5,232,202)

-

(25,461,645)

(45,343,031)

(353,286)

(21,137,649)

-

(21,490,935)

(41,367,413)

-

6,842,000

8,185,042

719,343

Transfers In
Transfers Out

6,122,657
19,457,547

(19,457,547)
19,457,547

(19,457,547)

-

-

(19,091,490)

4,442,555

-

(14,648,935)

(33,182,371)

Total Net Position -- Beginning

149,646,613

95,345,715

-

244,992,328

278,174,699

Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting

(39,473,374)

(8,843,650)

Total Net Position Balance -- Beginning
as adjusted

110,173,239

Change in Net Position

Total Net Position -- Ending

$

91,081,749

(48,317,024)

86,502,065
$

90,944,620

See Independent Auditor's Report.
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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-

196,675,304
$

-

$

182,026,369

86,502,065
$

244,992,328

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2014
Totals
Expressway
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers, users and grants
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

$

Airport

96,077,031 $
(33,841,615)
(16,673,049)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

2015

11,755,753 $
(11,556,910)
(3,069,743)

2014

107,832,784 $
(45,398,525)
(19,742,792)

104,137,198
(49,211,346)
(20,370,546)

45,562,367

(2,870,900)

42,691,467

34,555,306

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payment of state payment obligation
Operating subsidies and transfers to other funds

(2,500,000)
(19,312,620)

19,312,620

(2,500,000)
-

(2,708,332)
-

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

(21,812,620)

19,312,620

(2,500,000)

(2,708,332)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital grants
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets
Costs of issuance
Swap termination payment
Other expenses
Payments for capital acquisitions
Feeder road expense
Principal paid on capital debt
Loan payments received
Proceeds from bonds issued
Bond issue premium
Interest paid on capital debt

719,343
27,400
(110,455)
(6,289,450)
(7,530,000)
860,000
860 000
(17,199,549)

7,520,368
(8,794,173)
(1,135,000)
(4,534,592)

8,239,711
27,400
(110,455)
(15,083,623)
(8,665,000)
860,000
860 000
(21,734,141)

8,484,786
931
(961,724)
(27,508,864)
(26,689,952)
(349,995)
(128,120,000)
830,000
830 000
128,945,471
10,760,051
(23,729,788)

(29,522,711)

(6,943,397)

(36,466,108)

(58,339,084)

(4,944,091)
1,806,474
2,423,961

(10,174,806)
2,282,000
2,509

(15,118,897)
4,088,474
2,426,470

(10,648,692)
21,150,037
2,734,749

(713,656)

(7,890,297)

(8,603,953)

13,236,094

(6,486,620)

1,608,026

(4,878,594)

(13,256,016)

61,757,203

9,600,677

71,357,880

84,613,897

Net cash used by capital and
related financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Interest and dividends
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Balance - beginning of period
Balance - end of period

$

55,270,583

$

11,208,703

$

66,479,286

$

71,357,881

$

43,640,479 $
33,035
11,597,069
55,270,583 $

1,844,433
10,513
9,353,757
11,208,703

$

45,484,912 $
43,548
20,950,826
66,479,286 $

42,613,448
44,532
28,699,901
71,357,881

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Change Funds
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

$

See Independent Auditor's Report.
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2014
Totals
Expressway

Airport

2015

2014

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

$

19,876,157

$

(15,905,447) $

3,970,710

$

3,975,618

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net
Grants receivable
Prepaid expenses
Security deposits
Inventory
Accounts and other payables
Deferred income
Escrow deposits and reserves
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$

22,468,249

11,548,163

34,016,412

33,625,051

584,095
125,331
298,252
(15,206)
59,257
2,541,354
202,937
(578,059)
45,562,367 $

(23,502)
(268,387)
65,686
1,605,448
122,444
(15,305)
(2,870,900) $

560,593
(143,056)
363,938
(15,206)
59,257
4,146,802
325,381
(593,364)
42,691,467 $

(1,003,788)
201,192
(3,144)
(850)
2,757
(2,102,835)
(136,716)
(1,979)
34,555,306

Noncash capital financing activities:
Capital assets of $6,244,136 were acquired through contributions from governmental agencies and private developers.
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South Jersey Transportation Authority
Notes To Financial Statements
December 31, 2015
1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Reporting Entity

The South Jersey Transportation Authority (“Authority”) was created in 1991 by the South Jersey Transportation
Authority Act (“Act”), Chapter 252 of the Laws of New Jersey. The Authority became the successor to the New
Jersey Expressway Authority and the Atlantic County Transportation Authority (“ACTA”). Pursuant to the Act, the
Authority acquired the Civil Terminal Area of the Atlantic City International Airport as a transportation project. The
purpose of the Authority is to coordinate South Jersey’s transportation system in its regional jurisdiction of the
counties of Atlantic, Camden, Cape May, Cumberland, Gloucester and Salem, and deal particularly with the
highway network, aviation facilities and the transportation problems of Atlantic County.
The Authority’s responsibility is to maintain, repair and operate the 46.4-mile Atlantic City Expressway along with
portions of Routes 30, 187, and 42. Other functions of the Authority include those assumed with the acquisition of
ACTA as follows: operation of the New York Avenue Parking Garage and related office and commercial space in
Atlantic City, New Jersey; bus management; bus and automobile parking; traffic management; and transportation
planning in Atlantic County. The Airport Division is responsible for operating and improving the Airport.
The Authority operates under a Board of Commissioners. There are nine Commissioners, comprised of the State
Commissioner of Transportation, who also currently serves as the Chairman, the CEO and Secretary of the New
Jersey Commerce and Economic Growth Commission, and seven members appointed by the Governor with
Senate approval. Serving under the Authority’s Commissioners is the Executive Director, two (2) Deputy
Executive Directors, a Chief Financial Officer, a Chief of Staff and various Department Directors.
The financial statements of the Authority include all funds controlled by or dependent on the Authority
Commissioners in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The Authority is a component unit included in the State of New Jersey’s comprehensive annual financial report.
B.

Basis of Accounting

The Authority prepares its financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America for proprietary funds, which are similar to those for
private business enterprises. Proprietary funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when incurred.
The assets, liabilities and net position of the Authority are reported in a self-balancing set of accounts, which
include restricted and unrestricted resources, representing funds available for support of the Authority’s
operations.
All funds of the Authority follow Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statements and Interpretations
and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”).
C.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

The Authority’s operating revenues and expenses consist of revenues earned and expenses incurred relating to
the operation and maintenance of its Transportation System, which specifically includes the operations of the
Atlantic City Expressway and the Atlantic City International Airport. Grant revenues and expenses for South
Jersey Transportation Planning Organization (“SJTPO”) and Transportation Services (see Footnotes 17 and 23,
respectively) are included in operations of the Atlantic City Expressway. All other revenues and expenses are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. The Authority has allocated certain direct costs to Airport
operations. Among the direct cost allocations are expenses for health insurance coverage for eligible employees,
self-insurance reserve requirements for the Authority’s self-insurance program which includes coverage for
worker’s compensation insurance, auto liability and general liability coverage. Additional direct cost allocations
were made pertaining to Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) as required by GASB Statement No. 45
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Operating Revenues and Expenses (Continued)

“Accounting for Other Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions” (“GASB 45”). Costs such as allocation of
administrative staff time and other indirect costs remain in the expressway fund.
D.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, demand deposit accounts, short term treasuries with commercial
banks, investments with maturities of less than 90 days, and cash invested in commercial money market funds
(including restricted assets) are considered cash equivalents.
E.

Investments

Investments consist of both unrestricted and restricted investments and are carried at fair value as determined in
an active market.
F.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable for the Authority is reflected net of allowance for doubtful accounts. The allowance account
is adjusted at the end of every year for estimated bad debt expense. The estimate is based on the age of the
receivable and the likelihood of its collection.
G.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets of the Authority represent bond proceeds designated for construction and other monies and
assets required to be restricted for debt service, the state payment, arbitrage rebate, rehabilitation and repair,
subordinated debt, capital projects, self-insurance reserves and the funded portion of the OPEB liability.
H.

Basis of Organization: Description of Funds

The accounts of the Authority are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is a separate entity with its own
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, net position, revenue, and expenses. Resources are
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the restrictions, if
any, on the spending activities. The accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles is used for all of the aforementioned funds, which are consolidated and reported as
Proprietary Funds in the accompanying financial statements.
The Authority is subject to the provisions and restrictions of the third amended and restated resolution authorizing
revenue bonds and other obligations adopted May 19, 2009 (“Bond Resolution”). A summary of the activities of
each Fund created by the Bond Resolution is covered below.
Revenue Fund – accounts for resources and expenditures for Authority operations of a general nature. The
Revenue fund contains two sub-funds; one relating to revenue and expenses of the SJTPO and one relating to
revenue and expenses of Transportation Services Program (see footnotes 17 and 23 for further details).
Construction Fund – accounts for the receipt and disbursement of funds for the acquisition and construction of
capital projects. Included in this Fund are proceeds from the issuance of Transportation System Revenue Bonds
in 2004, 2006 and 2009, as well as receipt of federal grants, state grants and other contributed capital.
Debt Service Fund – accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt
principal, interest and related costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

H.

Basis of Organization: Description of Funds (Continued)

Debt Service Reserve Fund – must maintain an amount equal to the maximum annual Debt Service requirement
on all outstanding bonds in a calendar year. The monies in this fund are utilized to make up any deficiency in the
Debt Service Fund. In accordance with the Bond Resolution, the Authority may maintain a surety bond or an
insurance policy payable to the trustee in lieu of required cash deposit in the Debt Service Reserve. As of
December 31, 2015, the Authority maintains cash and investments in the Senior and Subordinated Debt Service
Reserve of $40,667,642, the total of which exceeds the maximum annual debt on all Authority Bonds outstanding.
The Debt Service Reserve requirement is $35,064,216.
Rehabilitation and Repair Fund – accounts for monies that shall be used to pay the costs of major resurfacing,
repairs, renewals or reconstruction of each Pledged Project or any part thereof, whether buildings, improvements,
fixtures, or equipment as determined in writing by the Authority and filed with the Trustee. The Authority is
required to maintain a minimum balance of $6,000,000 at December 31, 2015.
State Payment Fund – accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, the Authority’s State
payment obligation.
Rebate Fund – established for the purpose of paying to the United States Treasury, the Rebatable Arbitrage or
the penalty amount in lieu of rebate and, if elected, any amount required to terminate such penalty.
Subordinated Debt Fund – During 2009, the Authority issued 2009 Subordinated Bonds. This issue is secured by
amounts on deposit from the Subordinated Debt Fund or the General Reserve Fund.
General Reserve Fund – makes up deficiencies in payments to the other funds to cover operating expenses of
any general project or for any other corporate purpose of the Authority permitted by the Act.
Airport Revenue Fund – accounts for the resources and expenditures of the Atlantic City International Airport.
I.

Interest Income on Funds

Pursuant to Article I of the Bond Resolution, all earnings on the investment of monies in other funds are eligible to
be included as revenues in the Revenue Fund subject to Section 5.15 of the Bond Resolution which restricts the
transfer of earnings on investments in the General Reserve Fund to first being applied to other funds to meet any
deficiencies in funding requirements. Earnings on the Debt Service, Debt Service Reserve (after all required
transfers have been made to the Construction Fund), Rehabilitation and Repairs, and State Payment Funds shall
be transferred to the Revenue Fund if such Funds are at their requirements.
Earnings in the Construction Fund shall remain there until the project to which such earnings relate has been
substantially completed, at which time any excess funds may be transferred to other accounts established in the
Construction Fund or, if no other account is so specified, (1) the Debt Service Reserve Fund if such fund shall be
below the Debt Service Requirement, and (2) the Rehabilitation Fund, to the extent of any remaining balances of
such monies.
J.

Inability to Meet Debt Service Requirements

If amounts held in the Debt Service Fund are insufficient to pay the Debt Service Requirement coming due on
bonds, the Trustee shall transfer from the following funds an amount sufficient to eliminate such deficiency: the
Debt Service Reserve Fund, the State Payment Fund, the Rehabilitation and Repair Fund, the Subordinated Debt
Fund, and the General Reserve Fund.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

K.

Pledged and General Projects

Pledged Projects are the projects for which the Bonds were issued (except for the project constituting the
acquisition of the New York Avenue Parking Garage Facility and Airport facilities) and, in addition to those
projects, a project
(a)

which generates revenues sufficient to pay the operating expenses and rehabilitation and repair
requirement associated with such project in the fiscal year in which such project becomes operational
or is designated a Pledged Project by the Authority; and

(b)

which is reasonably projected by the Authority to generate revenues sufficient to pay such project’s
associated operating expenses and rehabilitation and repair requirement for each of the five fiscal
years following the year in which such project becomes operational or is designated a Pledged Project
by the Authority.

General Projects are projects that do not generate revenues sufficient to fully pay associated operating expenses
and rehabilitation and repair requirements. General Projects may become Pledged Projects if they meet certain
net revenue tests. The Airport and the New York Avenue Parking Garage are General Projects. Since the Airport
Parking Garage Project is related to the Airport, such project is considered a General Project under the
Resolution.
L.

Budgetary Information

In accordance with Section 7.06 of the Bond Resolution, on or before the fifteenth day of each year, the Authority
adopts by resolution an Annual Operating Budget for such year. All operating appropriations lapse at the end of
such year. As with all resolutions of the Authority, the budget resolution is subject to a fifteen-day Governor’s veto
period. The resolution comes into full force and effect if no veto is exercised.
The Budget is prepared at the Department Division level. All Division Managers are responsible for maintaining
expenditures below budget. The Department Directors may make line-item transfers of appropriations within their
departments. All line-item transfers must be approved in writing by the Executive Director. The accounting
system will not allow charges to accounts where the budget is expended.
M.

Inventory

Inventory consists of fuel for the Authority’s vehicles valued at cost of the most recent purchases. Also, in the
past, the Authority maintained a small supply of “E-ZPass on the Go” tags to be sold at various locations.
2015
Fuel
E-Z Pass Tags

N.

2014

$

56,729
-

$

104,686
11,300

$

56,729

$

115,986

Capital Assets

Cost Basis – All capital assets are recorded at historical cost. The cost of property and equipment includes costs
for infrastructure assets, right-of-way, land and improvements, electronic toll equipment, buildings, and equipment
(including software). Costs for infrastructure assets include construction costs, design and engineering fees, legal
and administrative expenses paid from construction monies, and bond interest expense, net of bond interest
income, incurred during the period of construction. Idle assets, if any, are carried at original cost until they are
disposed of.
28

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Notes To Financial Statements
December 31, 2015
1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

N.

Capital Assets (continued)

Capitalization Policy – Costs to construct or acquire additional capital assets, which in some cases replace
existing assets or otherwise prolong their useful lives, are capitalized for buildings and improvements, electronic
toll equipment, and other equipment (including software). Under the Authority’s policy of accounting for
infrastructure assets pursuant to the “depreciation method of accounting,” property costs represent a historical
accumulation of costs expended to acquire rights-of-way and to construct, improve, and place in operation the
various projects and related facilities. The Authority has established that capital expenditures with an original unit
cost of at least $5,000, with a useful life of one year or greater are required to be capitalized.
Construction in Progress – Costs related to the construction of capital assets that have been classified as ongoing
projects, and are not yet being used for their intended purpose have been reported as Construction in Progress.
These assets are not being depreciated until the Authority has determined that they are substantially completed
and are being utilized for their intended purpose. At that time, the costs will be re-classified to their respective
asset class and depreciated in accordance with the depreciation policy noted below.
Depreciation Policy – The Authority depreciates its assets using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:
Infrastructure
Infrastructure-Equipment
Buildings
Building Improvements
Electronic Tolls
Vehicles and Equipment
Heavy Duty Fire Truck
Road Overlay

30 years
10 years
30 years
5 to 10 years
10 years
5 years
20 years
10 years *

*In years prior to 2014, road overlay assets had been depreciated over a 30 year period. Based on the Authority’s
review of the assigned useful lives of recorded assets the useful life of road overlay assets was reduced to 10
years. This change had no material effect on depreciation expense.
O.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the collective net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public
Employees’ Retirement System and the Police and Firemen’s Retirement System (the “Plans”) and additions
to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by the Plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
P.

Bond Discount, Premium and Amortization of Issuance Costs

Bond discounts are presented as a reduction of the face amount of revenue bonds payable. Bond discounts and
premiums are associated with the issuance of bonds and are amortized using the bonds outstanding method.
Q.

Restricted Net Position

Restricted net position is comprised of amounts reserved for debt service, debt service reserve, arbitrage rebate,
rehabilitation and repair, capital projects and state payment fund.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

R.

New Accounting Pronouncements Recently Adopted

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Authority adopted GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 (GASB 68). GASB 68 addresses
accounting and financial reporting for pensions that are provided to the employees of state and local
governmental employers. This Statement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities,
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense related to pensions. Note disclosure
and supplementary information about pensions are also addressed. For defined benefits pensions, this statement
also identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected
benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service.
Certain Authority employees are provided defined benefit pensions through the Public Employees’ Retirement
System (PERS) and the Police and Firemen’s Retirement System (PFRS), which are cost-sharing, multipleemployer defined benefit pension plans administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and
Benefits. In accordance with GASB 68, the Authority has reported its proportionate share of PERS and PFRS net
pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and pension expense.
The Authority also adopted GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to
the Measurement Date – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 (GASB No. 71). GASB 71 amends
paragraph 137 of GASB 68 to require that, at transition, a government recognize a beginning deferred outflow of
resources for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net
pension liability.
The provisions of GASB 68 and 71 have been applied to the beginning net position of the 2015 fiscal year. The
following is a reconciliation of the total net position as previously reported at January 1, 2015 (the earliest full year
presented) to the restated net position:
Expressway
Airport
Total
Net Position as previously report as of January 1, 2015

$ 149,646,613

Restatement to beginning year Net Position

(39,473,374)

Net Position as of January 1, 2015 (restated)

$ 110,173,239

$ 95,345,715
(8,843,650)
$ 86,502,065

$ 244,992,328
(48,317,024)
$ 196,675,304

In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application (GASB 72). The
Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value measurement of assets and
liabilities. GASB 72 identifies various approaches to measuring fair value and levels of inputs based on the
objectivity of the data used to measure fair value. GASB 72 will be effective for periods beginning after June 15,
2015. The Authority is evaluating the impact of this new Statement.
In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related
Assets That Are Not Within the Scope of GASB 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements
67 and 68 (GASB 73). This Statement establishes requirements for defined benefit pensions and defined
contribution pensions that are not within the scope of GASB 68 and amends certain provisions of GASB 67,
Financial Reporting for Pensions Plans, and GASB 68. GASB 73 will be effective for fiscal periods beginning
after June 15, 2016. The Authority is evaluating the impact of this new Statement.
In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions (GASB 75). The Statements addresses accounting and financial reporting for other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) that are provided to employees of state and local governmental employers.
GASB 75 establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources, and expenses related to OPEB in the financial statements in addition to requiring more
extensive note disclosures and required supplementary information. GASB 75 will be effective for fiscal periods
beginning after June 15, 2017. The Authority is evaluating the impact of this new Statement.
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R.

New Accounting Pronouncements Recently Adopted (Continued)

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for
State and Local Governments. This statement, which is effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2015,
will not have any effect on the Authority’s financial reporting.
In August 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures. This statement, which is
effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2015, will not have any effect on the Authority’s financial
statements.
In December 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer
Defined Benefit Pension Plans. This statement, which is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15,
2015, will not have any effect on the Authority’s financial reporting.
In December 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants.
This statement, which is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2015, will not have any effect on
the Authority’s financial statements.
In January 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units – an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14. This statement, which is effective for fiscal periods beginning after June
15, 2016, will not have any effect on the Authority’s financial reporting.
2.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Pursuant to Article VI, Sections 6.02(a) and (b) and Section 6.03 of the Authority’s Bond Resolution, all monies
held by any depository may be placed on demand or time deposit, as directed by the Authority, provided that such
deposits shall permit the monies so held to be available for use when needed. All monies held by the Trustee, or
any other fiduciary, or any depository shall be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and to the
extent not so insured, shall be continuously and fully secured either by federal securities having a market value of
not less than the amount of such monies or in such other manner as may then be required by applicable federal
or state laws and regulations to provide security for the deposit of public funds.
All investments shall be made in “investment securities” as defined by Article I, Section 1.01 of the Bond
Resolution and shall mature or become subject to repurchase, withdrawal without penalty or redemption at the
option of the holder on or before the dates the invested amounts are reasonably expected to be needed.
Article I, Section 1.01 of the Authority’s Bond Resolution provides a list of investment securities that may be
purchased by the Authority. The investment securities, as defined by the Bond Resolution, consist of the
following:
(a)

Federal securities;

(b)

Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued by any agency or instrumentality of
the United States to the extent such obligations are guaranteed by the United States or by another such
agency, the obligations (including guarantees) of which are guaranteed by the United States;

(c)

Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued by any corporation chartered by
the United States, including but not limited to: Government National Mortgage Association, Federal
Land Banks, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal National Mortgage Association,
Federal Home Loan Banks, Federal Intermediate Credit Banks, Banks for Cooperatives, Tennessee
Valley Authority, United States Postal Service, Farmers Home Administration, Resolution Funding
Corporation, Export-Import Bank, Federal Financing Bank, and Student Loan Marketing Association;
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(d) Negotiable or non-negotiable certificates of deposit (or other time deposit arrangements) issued by any
bank, trust company or national banking association, including a Fiduciary, which certificates of deposit
shall be continuously secured or collateralized by obligations described in subparagraphs (a) or (b)
above, which shall have a market value at all times at least equal to the principal amount of such
certificates of deposit and shall be lodged with the Trustee, as custodian, by the bank, trust company or
national banking association issuing such certificates of deposit;
(e)

Uncollateralized negotiable or non-negotiable certificates of deposit (or other time deposit
arrangements) issued by any bank, trust company or national banking association, the unsecured
obligations of which are rated in one of the two highest rating categories, without regard to subcategories, by Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”);

(f) Repurchase agreements collateralized by obligations described in subparagraphs (a), (b) or (c) with any
registered broker/dealer subject to the Securities Investors’ Protection Corporation jurisdiction, which
has an uninsured, unsecured and unguaranteed obligation rate of “Prime-1" or “A-3" or better by
Moody’s, and “A-1" or “A” or better by S&P, or any commercial bank with the above ratings, provided:
(i)

a master repurchase agreement or specific written repurchase agreement governs the
transaction which characterizes the transaction as a purchase and sale of securities;

(ii)

the securities are held free and clear of any lien, by the Trustee or an independent third party
acting solely as agent for the Trustee, and such third party is (i) a Federal Reserve Bank, (ii) a
bank which is a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and which has combined
capital, surplus, and undivided profits of not less than $75,000,000, or (iii) a bank approved in
writing for such purpose by each credit issuer, if any, and the Trustee shall have received written

confirmation from such third party that it holds such securities, free and clear of any lien, as agent
for the Trustee;
(iii) a perfected first security interest under the Uniform Commercial Code, or book entry procedures
prescribed at 31 CFR 306.1 et seq. or 31 CFR 350.0 et seq. or a successor provision in such
securities is created for the benefit of the Trustee;
(iv) the repurchase agreement has a term of six months or less, or the Authority will value the
collateral securities no less frequently than monthly and will liquidate the collateral securities if
any deficiency in the required collateral percentage is not restored within two business days of
such valuation;

(g)

(v)

the repurchase agreement matures on or before a debt service payment date (or, if held in a fund
other than the Debt Service Fund, Debt Service Reserve Fund or Subordinated Debt Fund, other
appropriate liquidation period); and

(vi)

the fair market value of the securities in relation to the amount of the repurchase obligation is
equal to the collateral levels established by a rating agency for the ratings assigned by the rating
agency to the seller.

Banker’s acceptances, Eurodollar deposits and certificates of deposit, in addition to the certificates of
deposit provided for by subparagraphs (d) and (e) above of the domestic branches of foreign banks
having a capital and surplus of $1,000,000,000 or more, or any bank or trust company organized
under the laws of the United States of America or Canada, or any state or province thereof, having
capital and surplus, in the amount of $1,000,000,000, provided that the aggregate maturity value of all
such banker’s acceptances and certificates of deposit held at any time as investments of funds under
the Bond Resolution with respect to any particular bank, trust company, or national association shall
not exceed 5% of its capital and surplus; and provided further that any such bank, trust company, or
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national association shall be rated in one of the two highest rating categories, without regard to rating
sub-categories, by Moody’s and S&P;
(h)

Other obligations of the United States of America or any agency thereof which may then be
purchased with funds belonging to the State of New Jersey or which are legal investments for savings
banks in the State of New Jersey;

(i)

Deposits in the New Jersey Cash Management Fund;

(j)

Obligations of any state, commonwealth or possession of the United States or a political subdivision
thereof of any agency or instrumentality of such a state, commonwealth, possession or political
subdivision, provided that at the time of their purchase such obligations are rated in either of the two
highest rating categories by both Moody’s and S&P;

(k)

Commercial paper with a maturity date not in excess of 270 days rated by the rating agencies at least
equal to the rating assigned by the rating agencies to the applicable series of bonds and in no event
lower than the “A” category established by a rating agency (which may include sub-categories
indicated by plus or minus or by numbers) at the time of such investment, issued by an entity
incorporated under the laws of the United States or any state thereof;

(l)

Shares of diversified open-end management investment company as defined in the Investment
Company Act of 1940, which is a money-market fund which is then rated in any of the three highest
rating categories by any nationally recognized bond rating agency which is then rating the bonds or
money-market accounts of the Trustee or any bank or trust company organized under the laws of the
United States or any state thereof which has a combined capital and surplus of not less than
$50,000,000;

(m)

(n)

Investment contracts;
(i)

providing for the future purchase of securities of the type described in (a), (b), (c), (h) and (k)
above, which contacts have been approved for sale by a national securities exchange and all
regulatory authorities having jurisdiction; or

(ii)

the obligor under which or the guarantor thereof shall have a credit rating such that its long-term
debt is rated at least “A+” by S&P if the bonds are then rated by such rating agency and at least
“A-1" by Moody’s if the bonds are then rated by such rating agency.
any other investments permitted by State and Federal law.

"Federal Securities" shall mean (i) any direct and general obligations of, or any obligations guaranteed by, the United
States of America, including but not limited to interest obligations of the Resolution Funding Corporation or any
successor thereto, (ii) any obligations of any state or political subdivision of a state ("Refunded Bonds") which are
fully secured as to principal and interest by an irrevocable pledge of moneys or direct and general obligations of, or
obligations guaranteed by, the United States of America, which moneys or obligations are segregated in trust and
pledged for the benefit of the holders of the Refunded Bonds, and (iii) certificates of ownership of the principal or
interest of direct and general obligations of, or obligations guaranteed by, the United States of America, which
obligations are held in trust by a commercial bank which is a member of the Federal Reserve System; and (iv) nonredeemable and AAA rated (a) municipal securities of any state, commonwealth or possession of the United States
or a political subdivision thereof or any agency or instrumentality of such a state, commonwealth, possession or
political subdivision, provided that at the time of their purchase such obligations are rated in either of the two highest
rating categories by any two Rating Agencies, (b) negotiable or non-negotiable certificates of deposit (or other time
deposit arrangements) issued by any bank, trust company or national banking association, including a Fiduciary,
which certificates of deposit shall be continuously secured or collateralized by obligations described in
subparagraphs (i) or (ii) of this definition, which shall have a market value at all times at least equal to the principal
amount of such certificates of deposit and shall be lodged with the Trustee, as custodian, by the bank, trust
33

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Notes To Financial Statements
December 31, 2015
2.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

company or national banking association issuing such certificates of deposit; ( c) bonds, debentures, notes or other
evidences of indebtedness issued by any agency or instrumentality of the United States to the extent such
obligations are guaranteed by the United States or by another such agency the obligations (including guarantees) of
which are guaranteed by the United States; and (d) Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidences of indebtedness
issued by any corporation chartered by the United States, including, but not limited to: Government National
Mortgage Association, Federal Land Banks, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal National Mortgage
Association, Federal Home Loan Banks, Federal Intermediate Credit Banks, Banks for Cooperatives, Tennessee
Valley Authority, United States Postal Service, Farmers Home Administration, Resolution Funding Corporation,
Export-Import Bank, Federal Financing Bank and Student Loan Marketing Association.
All monies held under the Bond Resolution shall be continuously and fully secured by lodging, as collateral
security, direct obligations of or obligations guaranteed by the United States of America having a market value not
less than the amount of such monies. The Authority’s total book (cash and investments) balances were
$147,179,692 at December 31, 2015. The Authority’s total bank (cash and investments) balances were
$148,271,982 at December 31, 2015. The difference between bank balance and book balance is due primarily to
the timing of deposits and outstanding checks. In accordance with GASB 40, the Authority is also required to
disclose custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, and interest rate risk of its investments.
Concentration of credit risk is the inability to recover the value of deposit, investment, or collateral securities in the
possession of an outside party caused by a lack of diversification. The Authority’s Investment Policy does not
limit the amount of funds that can be in invested with any one financial institution or issuer. However, the
Authority mitigates concentration of credit risk by depositing cash and purchasing investments among several
financial institutions. The following schedule lists the allocation of cash and investments by financial institution.
Concentration of Credit Risk:
Institution/Issuer

Amount

U.S. Treasury

$

% of Portfolio

Bank of America

10,865,193
1,439,175

0.98%

Wells Fargo

29,064,071

19.75%

Bank of New York

80,784,005

54.89%

NJ Cash Management Fund

24,983,700

16.97%

43,548

0.03%

147,179,692

100.00%

Change Funds
$

7.38%

Custodial Credit Risk:
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of a depository financial institution or counterparty to a
transaction, the Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investment. The Authority mitigates this risk
by depositing or investing the majority of its funds available for investment in insured or collateralized investments
or in pooled investments of US government securities from time to time as of December 31, 2015, as well as
investing in high rated uncollateralized financial instruments.
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Insured

$

500,000

Collaterialized:
Collateral held by pledging bank in Authority's Name

30,003,246

Pooled Investments

105,767,705

Government Securities

10,865,193

Change Funds

43,548

Uncollaterialized and uninsured
$

147,179,692

Interest Rate Risk:
Interest rate risk is the possibility that an interest rate change could adversely affect an investment’s fair value.
The Authority manages interest rate risk on its short-term investments by keeping the weighted average maturity
of its short term investments below or equal to one year. The weighted average maturity is calculated taking into
consideration the maturity dates of the securities in the consolidated portfolio. On December 31, 2015, the
Authority had no short-term investments.
The Authority’s long term investments are all related to amounts on deposit in the debt service reserve fund,
revenue fund, subordinated debt service fund, and capital programs fund. The Authority mitigates interest rate
risk on its long term investments by trying to match the life of these investments to the life of the debt related to
these investments through the use of guaranteed investment contracts and long-term treasury obligations.
The Authority also has two investments in United States Treasury Notes in the face amount totaling $11,155,000.
These investments relate to the 2009A and 2014A Transportation System Revenue Refunding Bonds. These
investments mature on 8/15/2022. Earnings on these investments are restricted to the bond yield of 3.0234% and
3.8106%, respectively.
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Accounts receivable consist of user fees and other amounts from private entities. The following provides a
summary of the amounts of accounts and other receivables:
2015

2014

Unrestricted Assets:
Airport user Fees

$

745,514

$

716,012

Transportation Service User Fees

672,764

700,916

EZ-Pass Toll Revenue Receivable

1,341,438

1,118,061

CRDA

1,951,143

1,906,943

Billboard Lease Rec

217,627

182,167

Other Expressway user Fees

303,693

419,723

5,232,179

5,043,822

Gross Receivables
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles

(98,000)

Net Receivables

$

5,134,179

2015

(135,303)
$ 4,908,518

2014

Restricted Assets:
New Jersey DOT- South Inlet Project

$

CRDA
$

11,545,000

$ 12,405,000

79,747

6,000

11,624,747

$ 12,411,000

The receivable from the New Jersey Department of Transportation represents the unpaid principal portion of the
$17,000,000 originally borrowed from the Authority for the South Inlet Transportation Improvements Program
(See Footnote #26 for additional information).
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Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2015, is as follows:

December 31,
2014
Capital Assets not being
Depreciated:
Land and Improvements
Construction in Progress

$

Transfers to
Completed/
Deletions

Additions

December 31,
2015

146,921,642 $
57,004,742

$
5,530,881

$
(39,025,791)

146,921,642
23,509,832

203,926,384

5,530,881

(39,025,791)

170,431,474

183,971,571

7,057,759

(186,087)

190,843,243

19,566,569
529,744,097

2,977,943
38,530,542

(514,912)

22,029,599
568,274,640

549,310,666

41,508,485

(514,912)

590,304,239

(272,595,824)

(34,024,825)

700,384

(305,920,265)

(39,026,406) $

645,658,692

Non-Infrastructure
Capital Assets:
Buildings and Equipment

Infrastructure Capital Assets:
Infrastructure - Equipment
Infrastructure
Less:
Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets

$

664,612,798 $

20,072,301 $

In 2015, the Authority performed a review of capital assets to determine whether any assets were obsolete or no
longer in use. Fully depreciated assets were reviewed and determination made as to whether the item was
obsolete or no longer utilized. Also identified were items that had been upgraded with new construction, replaced
due to damage, outdated due to new technology, and obsolete engineering costs no longer applicable to the
authority’s capital projects. These items were removed from the balance sheet along with their associated
accumulated depreciation.

5.

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

The Authority received Capital Contributions totaling $6,842,000 in 2015. These contributions are detailed as
follows:
Source
2015
2014
Federal Aviation Administration
Passenger Facility Charges (PFCs)
FEMA Grant Reimbursement
Customer Facility Charges (CFCs)
Casino Reinvestment Development Authority
Miscellaneous
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$

4,674,203
1,448,454
597,864
121,479

$ 4,648,428
2,550,687
166,761
14,176
477,662
327,328

$

6,842,000

$ 8,185,042
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The capital funding the Authority receives from the United States Department of Transportation Federal Aviation
Administration (“FAA”) and the Passenger Facility Charges, as well as other local funds received, are designated
and utilized towards the development and improvement of the Atlantic City International Airport and other
expressway projects.
The Authority has been approved by the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”) to impose a Passenger Facility
Charge (“PFC”) of $4.50 on passengers enplaned at the Atlantic City International Airport. PFC collections,
including any interest earned after such collections, may be used only to finance the allowable costs of approved
projects at the Airport. PFC collections are classified as PFC Advanced until allowable costs are incurred. The
Authority collected $2,492,888 in PFC fees during 2015. The balance of PFC Advance at December 31, 2015 was
$2,321,651. At the time costs are incurred, the associated PFC revenues are recognized as Capital
Contributions. The Authority recognized $1,448,454 in PFC Capital Contributions in 2015.
As part of the Airport Development Plan, the Authority desired to relocate the car rental operations at Atlantic City
International Airport (‘Airport”) into the parking garage subject to the private use limitations set forth in the
indenture related to the financing of the construction of the parking garage. These improvements in the
construction of the parking garage will directly benefit the rental car companies.
During 2007, the Authority executed an agreement with rental car companies at the Airport increasing the
Customer Facility Charge (“CFC”) from $1.50 per vehicle, per day, to $3.00 per vehicle, per day. These charges,
along with any interest earned on cash balances, are dedicated to the improvements in the construction of the
parking garage associated with rental cars. CFC collections are classified as CFC Advanced until allowable costs
are incurred. At the time costs are incurred, the associated CFC revenues are recognized as Capital
Contributions. The Authority collected CFC fees of $353,277 during 2015. Through December 31, 2015, the
authority has recognized CFC revenue in the amount of $1,739,805.

6.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A. The Authority recognizes expenses when they are incurred. Commitments do not constitute expenses or
liabilities; they relate to unperformed contracts for goods or services. As of December 31, 2015,
commitments for projects still in progress was $16,954,737.
B. The Authority is the subject of, or a party to, various pending or threatened legal actions. The Authority
believes that any ultimate liability arising from these legal actions should not have a material effect on its
financial position or operations. Public liability claim exposures are self-insured by the Authority. The
Authority self-insures the initial retention limit of $200,000, per occurrence, after which exists $15,000,000
of excess liability insurance per occurrence to respond to any large losses exceeding the retention.
The Authority is a defendant in a number of claims and suits resulting from motor vehicle accidents on
Authority roadways. The Authority plans to vigorously defend these claims. A case involving a motor
vehicle accident has been assessed that, if 100% liability is found against the Authority, the losses may
approach the claim retention limit of $200,000.
C. The Authority receives financial assistance from the State of New Jersey and the U.S. Government in the
form of grants. Entitlement to the funds is generally conditional upon compliance with terms and
conditions of the grant agreements and applicable regulations, including the expenditures of the funds for
eligible purposes. Substantially all grants, entitlements and cost reimbursements are subject to financial
and compliance audits by grantors. As a result of these audits, costs previously reimbursed could be
disallowed and require repayment to the grantor agency.
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Accounts payable consists of liabilities payable from unrestricted and restricted assets. The following provides a
summary of the amounts of accounts payable at December 31, 2015 and 2014:
2015

2014

$

723,404 $
1,597,747
800,127
1,006,480
57,661
2,203,918

454,967
821,703
154,401
1,365,187
89,682
1,885,686

$

6,389,337 $

4,771,626

Airport Deicing Pad/Recovery System $
Loading Bridge Replacement
Checkpoint Escalator
Mitigation and Security Fencing
Roadway Maintenance/Facility Imp's
Atlantic City One-way Signaling
3rd lane widening
Various expressway improvements
Other airport improvements

250,637 $
407,624
324,338
397,889
38,250
221,093

209,108
232,108
48,830
548,134
94,930
313,609

$

1,639,831 $

1,446,719

Unrestricted:
Electronic toll collection expense
State Police
Payroll liabilities
Airport
SJTPO
Expressway operating expenses

Restricted:

The most significant change in Unrestricted Accounts Payable was an increase in New Jersey State Police
payable of $776 thousand. The decrease in restricted Accounts Payable is mainly attributable to the completion
of the 3rd lane widening project at the end of 2014.

8.

BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE

As of December 31, 2015, the outstanding bonds payable balance has been offset with unamortized bond
discounts in the amount of $2,038,633, and increased by the unamortized bond premium of $21,720,577.
Transportation System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014A
In December of 2014, the Authority issued $112,305,000 Series A Transportation System Revenue Refunding
Bonds to achieve a reduction in debt service. Because these bonds were issued over par value, a premium in the
amount of $10,760,051 was also received with this issue. Proceeds from the 2014A Bonds were used for the
following purposes:


A current refunding of its outstanding 2004 Series A Bonds to achieve a reduction in debt service. Proceeds
of $17,957,445 were used to purchase U.S. Government Securities that were placed in an escrow account.
The investments and fixed earnings from the investments were sufficient to fully service the defeased debt
until the debt was called. As a result of this defeasance, the Authority reduced its total debt requirements by
$1,192,369 which resulted in net present value savings in the amount of $1,545,658.
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An advance refunding of a portion of its outstanding 2009 Series A-1 Bonds to achieve a reduction in debt
service. Proceeds of $16,240,761 from the 2014A Bonds were used to purchase U.S. Government Securities
that were placed in an escrow account. The investments and fixed earnings from the investments were
sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt was called. As a result of the defeasance, the
Authority increased its total debt service requirements over the life of the issue by $9,087,619 which resulted
in negative net present value savings in the amount of $1,812,002. Although there was an increase in debt
service requirements over the life of the issue, the Authority will be able to save $3,598,756 during the first
five (5) years of the new issue.



The Authority tendered the purchase of its outstanding 2009 Series A-3 and A-4 Bonds to achieve a reduction
in debt service with proceeds of the 2014A Bonds of $88,866,846. As a result of the defeasance, the
Authority decreased its total debt service requirements over the life of the issue by $3,744,988 which resulted
in net present value savings in the amount of $5,006,707. By eliminating the variable rate obligations, the
Authority also eliminated the counterparty risk associated with outstanding letters of credit and the Authority’s
exposure to variable interest rate risk.

Optional Redemption
The 2014 Series A Bonds maturing prior to November 1, 2025 are not subject to optional redemption prior to
maturity. The 2014 Series A Bonds maturing on or after November 1, 2025 are subject to redemption, at the
option of the Authority, on or after November 1, 2024 in whole or in part (and if in part, by lot) at any time or from
time to time at 100% of the principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest to the date of redemption.
Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption
The 2014 Series A Bonds maturing on November 1, 2039 shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption
as hereinafter described, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed, plus
interest accrued to the redemption date. The mandatory sinking fund redemption payments shall be sufficient to
redeem the principal amount of the 2014 Series A Bonds on November 1 in each of the years and in the principal
amounts as follows:
Year
Principal
November 1
Amount
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039*

$ 4,585,000
5,180,000
5,780,000
24,100,000
27,110,000

* Final Maturity

Transportation System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014B (Federally Taxable)
In December of 2014, the Authority issued $17,255,000 of Federally Taxable Transportation System Revenue
Refunding Bonds Series 2014B. Proceeds from this issue were used to finance the termination the Authority’s
outstanding swap agreements with Bank of America; Merrill Lynch and Wells Fargo, N.A. in the amount of
$16,493,671 and $11,015,193 respectively. The Authority provided $10,400,000 from its Capital Projects
Revolving Fund to be used to offset the costs of termination.
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Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption
The 2014 Series B Taxable Bonds maturing on November 1, 2027 shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption as hereinafter described, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount to be
redeemed, plus interest accrued to the redemption date. The mandatory sinking fund redemption payments shall
be sufficient to redeem the principal amount of the 2014 Series B Taxable Bonds on November 1 in each of the
years and in the principal amounts as follows:
Year
November 1

Principal
Amount

2025
2026
2027*

$ 2,140,000
2,220,000
2,305,000

* Final Maturity

Make Whole Redemption
The 2014 Series B Taxable Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity by written direction of the Authority,
in whole or in part, on any Business Day at the "Make-Whole Redemption Price" (as defined herein). The "MakeWhole Redemption Price" is the greater of (i) 100% of the principal amount of the 2014 Series B Taxable Bonds
to be redeemed and (ii) the sum of the present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and
interest to the maturity date of the 2014 Series B Taxable Bonds to be redeemed, not including any portion of
those payments of interest accrued and unpaid as of the date on which the 2014 Series B Taxable Bonds are to
be redeemed, discounted to the date on which the 2014 Series B Taxable Bonds are to be redeemed on a
semiannual basis, assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months, at the adjusted "Treasury Rate"
(as defined herein) plus thirty (30) basis points, plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest on the 2014
Series B Taxable Bonds to be redeemed on the redemption date.
The "Treasury Rate" is, as of any redemption date, the yield to maturity as of such redemption date of United
States Treasury securities with a constant maturity (as compiled and published in the most recent Federal
Reserve Statistical Release H.15 (519) that has become publicly available at least two (2) Business Days prior to
the redemption date (excluding inflation indexed securities) (or, if such Statistical Release is no longer published,
any publicly available source of similar market data)) most nearly equal to the period from the redemption date to
the maturity date of the 2014 Series B Taxable Bonds to be redeemed; provided, however, that if the period from
the redemption date to such maturity date is less than one (1) year, the weekly average yield on actually traded
United States Treasury securities adjusted to a constant maturity of one (1) year will be used.
Transportation System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012
In June of 2012, the Authority refunded a portion of certain maturities of its outstanding 1999 Series Bonds by
issuing $25,680,000 of Series 2012 Transportation System Revenue Refunding Bonds to achieve a reduction in
debt service. Proceeds from the 2012 Bonds were used to purchase U.S. Government Securities that were
placed in an escrow account. The investments and fixed earnings from the investments were sufficient to fully
service the defeased debt until the debt was called. As a result of the defeasance, the Authority reduced its total
debt service requirements by $4,568,985 which resulted in net present value savings in the amount of
$3,654,068.
Optional Redemption
The 2012 Senior Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity.
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Transportation System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012A
In October of 2012, the Authority refunded the remaining portion of certain maturities of its outstanding 1999
Series Bonds by issuing $76,780,000 of Series 2012A Transportation System Revenue Refunding Bonds to
achieve a reduction in debt service. Proceeds from the 2012A Bonds were used to purchase U.S. Government
Securities that were placed in an escrow account. The investments and fixed earnings from the investments were
sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt was called. As a result of the defeasance, the Authority
reduced its total debt service requirements by $11,437,611, which resulted in net present value savings in the
amount of $7,488,864.
Transportation System Revenue Bonds 2009
On August 4, 2009, the Authority issued (i) $62,015,000 Transportation System Revenue Bonds, 2009 Series A-1
("2009 A-1 Senior Bonds"), $38,995,000 Transportation System Revenue Bonds, 2009 Series A-2 ("2009 A-2
Senior Bonds"), and $96,260,000 Transportation System Revenue Bonds, 2009 Series A-5 (Federally Taxable –
Issuer Subsidy – Build America Bonds) ("2009 Taxable Senior Bonds" and together with the 2009 A-1 Senior
Bonds and the 2009 A-2 Senior Bonds, the "2009 Fixed Rate Senior Bonds") and (ii) $19,085,000 Subordinated
Bonds, 2009 Series A ("2009 Subordinated Bonds" and together with the 2009 A-1 Senior Bonds and the 2009 A2 Senior Bonds, the "2009 Tax-Exempt Fixed Rate Bonds"). Simultaneously with the issuance and delivery of the
2009 Fixed Rate Bonds, the Authority issued its $44,000,000 Variable Rate Transportation System Revenue
Bonds, 2009 Series A-3 ("2009 A-3 Senior Bonds") and $43,795,000 Variable Rate Transportation System
Revenue Bonds, 2009 Series A-4 ("2009 A-4 Senior Bonds" and together with the 2009 A-3 Senior Bonds, the
"2009 Variable Rate Senior Bonds"), which are a letter of credit supported variable rate bonds.
The proceeds of the 2009 Senior Bonds, together with other available Authority funds, are being used to finance
(i) certain Expressway Projects ("Pledged Projects") and Airport Projects ("General Projects") contained in the
Authority’s ten-year Capital Program; (ii) the funding of an amount required to increase the amount on deposit in
the Debt Service Reserve Fund to the Debt Service Reserve Requirement; (iii) the current refunding of all of the
Authority's outstanding 2007 Taxable Notes and 2009 Notes (each as hereinafter defined); (iv) the current
refunding of a portion of the Authority's Outstanding 1999 Bonds; and (v) the payment of certain costs of issuing
the 2009 Senior Bonds.
The proceeds of the 2009 Subordinated Bonds were used to finance (i) a portion of the Costs of the South Inlet
Transportation Improvements Project; (ii) the funding of an amount required to increase the amount on deposit in
the Subordinated Bonds Debt Service Reserve Fund to the Subordinated Bonds Debt Service Reserve
Requirement; and (iii) the payment of certain costs of issuing the 2009 Subordinated Bonds. The Authority has
elected to issue the 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds as "Build America Bonds" for purposes of the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 and to receive a cash subsidy from the United States Treasury equal to
35% of the interest payable on the 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds.
Transportation System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 A-1
On August 4, 2009, the Authority issued (i) $62,015,000 of Transportation System Revenue Bonds. The proceeds
of the 2009 A-1 Senior Bonds were used to (i) current refund a portion of the Outstanding 1999 Bonds maturing
on November 1 in the years 2011 through and including 2019 in the aggregate principal amount of $61,625,000;
and (ii) pay certain costs of issuing the 2009 A-1 Senior Bonds. The Senior Bonds bear interest at rates between
3.0% and 5.0%. Interest is payable semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each year until maturity.
The 2009 A-1 Senior Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity.
A portion of the Transportation System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014A, issued in December were used
to complete an advance refunding of a portion of the Transportation System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 A-1.
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Transportation System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 A-2
On August 4, 2009, the Authority issued $38,995,000 of Transportation System Revenue Bonds. The proceeds of
the 2009 A-2 Senior Bonds were used to (i) pay the costs of the 2009 Airport Project consisting of, among other
things, Federal Inspection Service Facility expansion, Airport terminal and apron expansion, and design and
construction of an Airport Rescue and Fire Fighting Station and; (ii) current refund the portion of the 2009 Notes
which financed the Airport Rescue and Fire Fighting Station for the Airport’s emergency personnel; (iii) fund the
amount required to increase the amount on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund to the Debt Service
Reserve Requirements and; (iv) pay certain costs of issuing the 2009 A-2 Senior Bonds. The 2009 A-2 Senior
Bonds bear interest at rates between 3.0% and 5.125%. Interest is payable semi-annually on May 1 and
November 1 of each year until maturity.
Optional Redemption
The 2009 A-2 Senior Bonds maturing prior to November 1, 2020 are not subject to optional redemption prior to
maturity. The 2009 A-2 Senior Bonds maturing on or after November 1, 2020 are subject to redemption prior to
maturity on or after November 1, 2019, at the option of the Authority, in whole or in part at any time or from time to
time at 100% of the principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest to the date of redemption.
Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption
The 2009 A-2 Senior Bonds maturing on November 1, 2033 shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption as hereinafter described, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount to be
redeemed, plus interest accrued to the redemption date. The mandatory sinking fund redemption payments shall
be sufficient to redeem the principal amount of the 2009 A-2 Senior Bonds on November 1 in each of the years
and in the principal amounts as follows:
Year
Interest
Principal
November 1
Rate
Amount
2030
2031
2032
2033*

5.50%
5.50%
5.50%
5.50%

$

5,405,000
5,680,000
5,960,000
865,000

* Final Maturity

Transportation System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 A-5
Federally Taxable – Issuer Subsidy- Build America Bonds
On August 4, 2009, the Authority issued $96,260,000 of Transportation System Revenue Bonds, 2009 Series A-5,
Federally Taxable-Issuer Subsidy - Build America Bonds. The proceeds of the 2009 A-5 Taxable Senior Bonds
were used to (i) pay a portion of the costs of the 2009 Expressway Project consisting of, among other things,
westbound third lane widening, bridge rehabilitation and repair, electronic toll collection upgrades, and pavement
overlay; (ii) fund the amount required to increase the amount on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund to the
Debt Service Reserve Requirements and; (iii) pay certain costs of issuing the 2009 A-5 Taxable Senior Bonds.
The 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds have been issued as taxable, Build America Bonds as authorized by The
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 signed into law by President Obama on February 17, 2009
("Recovery Act"). Pursuant to the Recovery Act, the Authority will receive cash subsidy payments from the United
States Treasury equal to 35% of the interest payable on the 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds. Beginning in 2013, the
cash subsidy payments received from the United States Treasury were reduced by approximately 8%. The cash
subsidy payments received are treated as an offset to interest expense pursuant to the Third Amended and
Restated Resolution. During 2015, the Authority received $2,192,105. Through December 31, 2015, the Authority
has received a total of $14,559,423 in cash subsidy payments from the United States Treasury.
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Redemption – 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds
Make Whole Redemption
The 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity by written direction of the Authority, in
whole or in part, on any Business Day at the “Make-Whole Redemption Price”. The “Make-Whole Redemption
Price” is the greater of (i) 100% of the principal amount of the 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds to be redeemed and (ii)
the sum of the present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest to the maturity date of
the 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds to be redeemed, not including any portion of those payments of interest accrued
and unpaid as of the date on which the 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds are to be redeemed, discounted to the date
on which the 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds are to be redeemed on a semi-annual basis, at the adjusted “Treasury
Rate” plus 40 basis points, plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest on the 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds to
be redeemed on the redemption date.
The “Treasury Rate” is, as of any redemption date, the yield to maturity as of such redemption date of United
States Treasury securities with a constant maturity that has become publicly available at least two (2) business
days prior to the redemption date most clearly equal to the period from the redemption date to the maturity date of
the 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds to be redeemed; provided, however, that if the period from the redemption date to
such maturity date is less than one (1) year, the weekly average yield on actually traded United States Treasury
securities adjusted to a constant maturity of one (1) year will be used.
Extraordinary Optional Redemption
The 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Authority, in whole
or in part upon the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event, at a redemption price equal to the greater of: (1) 100%
of the principal amount of the 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds to be redeemed; and (2) the sum of the present value
of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest to the maturity date of the 2009 Taxable Senior
Bonds to be redeemed, not including any portion of those payments of interest accrued and unpaid as of the date
on which the 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds are to be redeemed, discounted to the date on which the 2009 Taxable
Senior Bonds are to be redeemed on a semi-annual basis, at the Treasury Rate, plus 100 basis points; plus, in
each case, accrued interest on the 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds to be redeemed at the redemption date. An
“Extraordinary Event” will have occurred if a material adverse change has occurred to Section 54AA or 6431 of
the Code pursuant to which the Authority’s 35% cash subsidy payment from the United States Treasury is
reduced or eliminated.
Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption
The 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds maturing on November 1, 2038 shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption as hereinafter described, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount to be
redeemed, plus interest accrued to the redemption date. The mandatory sinking fund redemption payments shall
be sufficient to redeem the principal amount of the 2009 Taxable Senior Bonds on November 1 in each of the
years and in the principal amounts as follows:
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Year
November 1
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038 *

Principal
Amount
$

5,460,000
5,725,000
6,020,000
11,710,000
12,775,000
13,375,000
19,555,000
19,725,000
1,915,000

* Final Maturity

2009 Subordinated Bonds, Series A
On August 4, 2009, the Authority issued 2009 Subordinated Bonds in the principal amount of $19,085,000. The
proceeds were used to finance (i) the payment of New Jersey Department of Transportation’s (“NJDOT”) share in
the amount of $17,000,000 of the costs of construction of certain road improvements (“NJDOT’s Construction
Portion”) to be undertaken on certain “feeder roads” located in Atlantic City that will maintain, operate and support
Expressway Projects of the Authority, (collectively, the “South Inlet Transportation Improvements Project”); (ii) the
funding of an amount required to increase the amount on deposit in the Subordinated Bonds Debt Service
Reserve Fund to the Subordinated Bonds Debt Service Reserve Requirements; and (iii) the payment of costs of
issuing the 2009 Subordinated Bonds. Interest on the 2009 Subordinated Bonds, Series A is payable on May 1
and November 1 of each year until maturity or earlier redemption.
Optional Redemption
The 2009 Subordinated Bonds maturing prior to November 1, 2020 are not subject to optional redemption prior to
maturity. The 2009 Subordinated Bonds maturing on or after November 1, 2020 are subject to redemption prior
to maturity on or after November 1, 2019, at the option of the Authority, in whole or in part (and if in part, by lot) at
any time or from time to time at 100% of the principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest to the date of
redemption or acceleration thereof, commencing November 1, 2009.
2006 Series A Transportation System Revenue Bonds
On January 12, 2006, the Authority issued Transportation System Revenue Bonds, 2006 Series A, in the principal
amount of $50,365,000. Proceeds of the 2006 Series A Bonds were used to finance (i) the construction of a multilevel parking garage containing approximately 1,400 parking spaces located in front of the passenger terminal at
the Atlantic City International Airport, including the construction of a fare collection system capable of accepting
E-ZPass as a method of payment; (ii) the redemption of the Authority’s $10,400,000 Subordinated Notes, Series
2005, dated March 30, 2005 and due March 29, 2006 including interest thereon; (iii) the amount required to
increase the amount on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund to the Debt Service Reserve Requirement; (iv)
a portion of the interest on the 2006 Series A Bonds for approximately twenty-four months; and (v) certain costs of
issuing the 2006 Series A Bonds. The 2005 Subordinate Notes along with interest expense were repaid on
February 16, 2006.
Optional Redemption
The 2006 Series A Bonds will be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity date at the option of the
Authority, on any date on or after November 1, 2015, either in whole or in part by lot, at a redemption price of one
hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest thereon to the
date fixed for redemption. In the event of any optional redemption of the 2006 Series A Bonds in part, the amount
of 2006 Series A Bonds redeemed shall be credited against the remaining Sinking Fund Installments thereafter to
become due in such years and amounts as shall be determined by the Authority in its discretion.
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Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption
The 2006 Series A Bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity at a redemption
price of 100% of the principal amount thereof being redeemed, without premium, plus accrued interest to the
redemption date, on the following dates in the respective principal amounts set forth opposite such dates:
Year Due
(November 1)
2030
2031
2032

Principal
Amount

Year Due
(November 1)

$7,065,000
7,380,000
7,710,000

2033
2034
2035

Principal
Amount
$8,055,000
9,855,000
10,300,000

Sources of Payment and Security for Bonds and Subordinated Indebtedness
The Bond Resolution provides that, subject only to the rights of the Authority to apply amounts for Operating
Expenses of Pledged Projects, the Revenues of the Transportation System (excluding Airport Revenues), all
Scheduled Counterparty Payments, all Government Direct Subsidies and any moneys, other than the foregoing,
received by the Authority from any other source for operating, maintaining, or repairing the Transportation System
are pledged on a senior lien basis to secure the payment of Bonds issued under the Resolution, Qualified Swap
Obligations, if any, and Credit Facility Reimbursement Obligations, if any.
In addition to the foregoing, the 2006 Bonds and the 2009 A-2 Senior Bonds are also payable from and secured
by a lien on and pledge of the Authority’s Airport Revenues.
Subordinated Indebtedness issued pursuant to the provisions of the Resolution are not Bonds within the meaning
of the Resolution and are secured solely by amounts in the Subordinated Debt Fund or the General Reserve
Fund, subject to the provisions of the Resolution requiring prior application of amounts in such Funds to other
purposes, including, but not limited to, the payment of Debt Service on Bonds issued under the Resolution,
Qualified Swap Obligations, if any, and Credit Facility Reimbursement Obligations.
Schedule of Annual Debt Service for Principal and Interest for Long Term Debt Issued and Outstanding:
Bonds Payable:
Non-Airport
Principal
Interest

Calendar
Year
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2039
$

6,050,000
5,665,000
5,220,000
5,390,000
12,315,000
70,760,000
77,690,000
72,345,000
96,180,000
351,615,000 $

17,023,048
16,729,148
16,502,548
16,293,748
16,078,148
70,911,149
51,825,108
34,888,436
11,772,182
252,023,515 $

Airport
Principal
1,320,000
1,390,000
1,445,000
1,510,000
1,250,000
6,545,000
17,895,000
57,655,000
7,185,000
96,195,000 $

46

Interest
4,576,200
4,526,700
4,471,100
4,413,300
4,349,125
20,824,226
19,245,395
9,402,800
1,163,750
72,972,596 $

Total
28,969,248
28,310,848
27,638,648
27,607,048
33,992,273
169,040,375
166,655,503
174,291,236
116,300,932
772,806,111
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Below is a schedule reconciling the Outstanding Bond Principal to the Bonds Payable, net of Discount and
Premium:
2015
2014
Prinic ipal on Expressway Bonds
Principal on Airport Bonds
Discount on Bonds Payable
Premium on Bonds Payable

Short Term portion of Bonds Payable
Long Term portion of Bonds Payable

$

351,615,000 $
96,195,000
(2,038,633)
21,720,577

359,145,000
97,330,000
(2,145,827)
23,480,775

$

467,491,944

$

477,809,948

$

9,014,318
458,477,626

$

10,331,125
467,478,823

$

467,491,944

$

477,809,948

Below is a schedule that details the outstanding bonds payable net of discount on bonds payable and premium on
bonds payable:
Unamortized
Unamortized
Bonds net of
Principal
Bond
Bond
discount and
Issue
Balance
Discount
Premium
premium
2006A $
2009 A-1
2009 A-2
2009 A-5
2009 Sub
2012
2012A
2014A
2014B

50,365,000 $
18,670,000
36,005,000
96,260,000
14,490,000
25,680,000
76,780,000
112,305,000
17,255,000

$

447,810,000 $

(675,389) $

$

49,689,611
18,774,007
36,000,351
94,901,406
14,523,389
28,368,804
85,442,861
122,536,515
17,255,000

21,720,576 $

467,491,944

104,007
(4,649)
(1,358,594)
33,389
2,688,804
8,662,861
10,231,515
(2,038,632) $

Derivative and Hedging Activities
In May 2005, the Authority adopted a swap management policy, the purpose of which was to set forth the
parameters in which interest rate swaps and other derivative financial instruments would be used to better
manage its assets and liabilities. The Authority will not enter into interest rate swaps for speculative purposes.
The Authority will enter into interest rate swaps only in connection with a specified bond issue. The Authority
intends to execute interest rate swaps if the transaction can be expected to result in the following:








Hedging to reduce exposure to changes in interest rates on a particular financial transaction.
Reduction in interest rate risk in order to better manage the Authority’s overall asset/liability balance.
Obtain a lower net cost of borrowing with respect to the Authority’s debt.
Manage variable interest rate exposure consistent with prudent debt practices.
Manage exposure to changing market conditions in advance of anticipated bond issues (through the use
of anticipatory hedging instruments).
Achieve more flexibility in meeting overall financial objectives than could be achieved in conventional
markets.
Generate cash flow through synthetic fixed rate transactions to advance fund capital projects, which will
ultimately be funded through Federal, State or other grants.
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In June of 2005, the Authority entered into two (2) Swaptions with two (2) Counterparties that provided the
Authority with an upfront payment of $4,552,500 from Bank of America, N.A. and $3,035,000 from Wachovia, N.A.
(collectively, the “Premium”), net of issue costs of $160,000. The Swaptions had given the Bank of America, N.A.
and Wachovia Bank, N.A. (collectively, the “Counterparties”) the option to enter into a Swap whereby they would
receive fixed amounts and pay variable amounts. It was originally anticipated that if the options were exercised;
the Authority would then issue variable-rate refunding bonds.
On July 1, 2009 the Counterparties exercised their one-time option to put the Authority into the Swap (“2009
Swaps”). The 2009 Swaps were effective as of November 1, 2009 and mature on November 1, 2029. The terms
of the 2009 Swaps required the Authority to pay a fixed rate of 4.70% and receive a variable payment computed
as 75 percent of the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). On August 4, 2009, the Authority issued the 2009
Series A-3 and A-4 Variable Rate Senior Bonds, the Authority designated these Bonds as Related Bonds (as
defined in the Swaptions) for purposes of the Third Amended and Restated Resolution.
During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Authority implemented GASB Statement 53 of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Under GASB 53, the Authority reported derivative instruments on the Statement of
Net Position at fair value with changes in fair value presented as deferred inflows or deferred outflows.
On December 29, 2014, the Authority terminated the two (2) interest rate swaps by making swap termination
payments in the amount of $16,493,671 and $11,015,193 to Bank of America, Merrill Lynch and Wells Fargo
Bank, N.A. respectfully. These payments were made in conjunction with the issuance of Transportation System
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014B, dated December 29, 2014.

9.

ARBITRAGE REBATE PAYABLE

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 imposed additional restrictive regulations, reporting requirements and arbitrage
rebate liabilities on issuers of tax-exempt debt. This Act requires the remittance to the IRS of 90% of the
cumulative rebatable arbitrage within 60 days of the end of each five-year reporting period following the issuance
of governmental bonds. The estimated amount of arbitrage payable represents the excess of amounts earned on
“taxable” investments over the interest cost of the tax-exempt borrowing, plus income attributable to the excess.
The Authority had no arbitrage rebate due on any of its outstanding debt as of December 31, 2015.

10. DEBT DEFEASANCE
In 2009, the Authority refunded a portion of certain maturities of its outstanding 1999 Series Bonds by issuing
$62,015,000 of Series 2009 Bonds to achieve a reduction in Debt Service. Proceeds from the 2009 Bonds were
used to purchase U.S. Government Securities that were placed in an escrow account. The investments and fixed
earnings from the investments were sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt was called. For
financial reporting purposes, the debt has been considered defeased and therefore, removed as a liability from
the Authority’s balance sheet. The amount of defeased debt removed from the balance sheet was $61,625,000.
The proceeds from the 2009 Bonds placed in the escrow account were used to refund serial bonds with interest
rates ranging from 5.0% to 5.25% and a par value of $61,625,000 that were called on November 1, 2009 at a
redemption price of 101% of the par amount, plus accrued interest to the redemption date. As a result of the
defeasance, the Authority reduced its total debt service requirements by $4,443,075, which resulted in an
economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt service payments on the old and new debt)
$3,772,001.
In June 2012, the Authority refunded a portion of certain maturities of its outstanding 1999 Series Bonds by
issuing $25,680,000 of Series 2012 Transportation System Revenue Refunding Bonds to achieve a reduction in
debt service. Proceeds from the 2012 Bonds were used to purchase U.S. Government Securities that were
placed in an escrow account. The investments and fixed earnings from the investments were sufficient to fully
service the defeased debt until the debt was called. As a result of the defeasance, the Authority reduced its total
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debt service requirements by $4,568,985 which resulted in net present value savings in the amount of
$3,654,068.
In October 2012, the Authority refunded the remaining portion of certain maturities of its outstanding 1999 Series
Bonds by issuing $76,780,000 of Series 2012A Transportation System Revenue Refunding Bonds to achieve a
reduction in debt service. Proceeds from the 2012A Bonds were used to purchase U.S. Government Securities
that were placed in an escrow account. The investments and fixed earnings from the investments were sufficient
to fully service the defeased debt until the debt was called. As a result of the defeasance, the Authority reduced
its total debt service requirements by $11,437,611, which resulted in net present value savings in the amount of
$7,488,864.
In December 2014, the Authority refunded the outstanding balance of its Series 2004A Transportation System
Revenue Bonds, the outstanding balance of its 2009 Series A-3 and A-4 Variable Rate Transportation System
Revenue Bonds and 2009 Series A-1 Transportation System Revenue Bonds by issuing $129,560,000 of Series
2014A Transportation System Revenue Refunding Bonds as well as issuing $17,255,000 of Series 2014B
Transportation System Revenue Refunding Bonds (Federally Taxable) to realize debt service savings on its 2004
Series A obligations, eliminate its variable rate exposure and counterparty risk related to its outstanding swap
agreements and credit facilities, and provide near term debt service relief. Proceeds from the 2014A and 2014B
Bonds were used to purchase U.S. Government Securities that were placed in an escrow account. The
investments and fixed earnings from the investments were sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the
debt was called. As a result of the defeasance, the Authority increased its total debt service requirements by
$4,150,261. This financing resulted in negative net present value savings in the amount of $5,659,639. As a
result of this refunding the Authority will recognize near term debt service savings over the next five (5) years in
the amount of $24,201,734.

11. CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS
Conduit debt obligations are defined as certain limited-obligation revenue bonds, certificates of participation, or
similar debt instruments issued by a state or local governmental entity for the express purpose of providing capital
financing for a specific third party that is not part of the issuer’s financial reporting entity.
The Authority issued and sold Special Revenue Bonds to Mirage Resorts, Incorporated in 1999, 2000, and 2001
to provide funds to pay a portion of Mirage’s share of the cost of the Atlantic City Expressway Connector Project
(“Connector”). The Special Revenue Bonds are payable solely by CRDA pursuant to the Pledge Agreement
dated October 10, 1997 between the Authority and CRDA.
The Authority has no other responsibility for the payment of this debt. The amounts payable by CRDA under the
CRDA Pledge Agreement are Governmental Grants, which do not constitute Revenues under the Bond
Resolution, and the Special Revenue Bonds are not payable from or secured by such Revenues. The total
amount of this outstanding conduit debt as of December 31, 2015 is as follows:
Year
Issued
1999
2000
2001

Amount
Issued

Accreted Value
at 12/31/15

Maturity
Value

$

20,003,710
24,999,328
9,996,322

$

24,425,000
30,075,000
11,390,000

$

24,425,000
30,075,000
11,390,000

$

54,999,360

$

65,890,000

$

65,890,000

All of the Special Revenue Bonds mature on October 1, 2037 and have interest rates ranging from 3.5% to
4.05%.
49

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Notes To Financial Statements
December 31, 2015
11. CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
In 2007, the Authority began receiving payments pursuant to the CRDA Pledge Agreement described above. As
of December 31, 2015, the Authority has cumulatively received $18,293,841. This amount was applied to
outstanding interest payable proportionally to all series and remitted to the bondholders by the trustee in
accordance with the terms of the indenture.

12. RATES AND CHARGES
Section 7.08 of the Bond Resolution states as follows:
(a) (1)

The Authority shall at all times fix, impose, charge and collect tolls, fares, fees and other charges
for the use of the Transportation System as shall be required in order that, in each fiscal year, net
revenues and net revenues available for debt service shall at least equal the net revenue
requirements for such year; and

(2)

The Authority shall at all times fix, impose, charge and collect tolls, fares, fees and other charges
for the use of the Transportation System as shall be required in order that, in each fiscal year,
current revenues and airport revenue available for debt service shall at least equal the Operating
Expenses for Pledged Projects for such fiscal year and the debt service on all outstanding bonds
(net of capitalized interest) and subordinated indebtedness for such fiscal year and any required
deposits to the Debt Service Reserve Fund and the Rehabilitation and Repair Fund, if any such
deposits are required.

The net revenue requirement means an amount of net revenue for the period under consideration equal to the
greater of:
120% of the debt service payable on all outstanding bonds (net of capitalized interest available for the
purpose); or
100% the aggregate of debt service payable on all outstanding bonds (net of available capitalized
interest as aforesaid), Rehabilitation and Repair Requirements, State Payment Requirement, debt
service payable during the period on subordinated indebtedness, operating expenses of general
projects, and other required deposits to funds, including the Debt Service Reserve Fund and Rebate
Fund.
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Operating Revenue

$

Section 7.08

Section 7.08

Section 7.08

(a)(1)

(a)(1)

(a)(2)

120.00%

100.00%

100.00%

107,177,324

Contract Payments - South Inlet

$

-

$

107,177,324
-

571,051

571,051

571,051

934

934

934

41,104

41,104

41,104

107,790,413

109,290,232

107,790,413

Interest Revenue
Interest Revenue-Airport
Interest Revenue-General Reserve Fund
Total Revenue

107,177,324
1,499,819

Less:
Grant Revenue

5,351,762

5,351,762

5,351,762

Airport Revenue

12,012,656

12,012,656

12,012,656

934

934

934

Total Available Revenue

90,425,061

91,924,880

90,425,061

Pledged Project Expenses

46,924,897

46,924,897

46,924,897

Net Revenues

43,500,164

44,999,983

43,500,164

Airport Interest

Airport Revenue Available for Debt Service (ARAFDS)
Net Revenue + ARAFDS

5,744,860

5,744,860

5,744,860

49,245,024

50,744,843

49,245,024
96,169,921

Total Available Revenue + ARAFDS
Senior Debt Service

29,051,108

$

$

29,051,108

$

29,051,108

1,497,485

Subordinated Debt Service
Rehabilitation & Repair Requirement

2,500,000

State Payment Requirement

10,684,996

General Project Operating Expenses
Total Debt Service & Other
Obligations

$

29,051,108

Total Pledged Projects
and Debt Service

N/A

$

43,733,589

N/A

N/A

$

75,976,005

Coverage Ratio

169.51%

116.03%

126.58%

Required Coverage

120.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Excess Coverage

49.51%

16.03%

26.58%
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General Information about the Pension Plans
Plan Descriptions
All full-time Authority employees participate in the Public Employees' Retirement System ("PERS") or the Police
and Firemen’s Retirement System (“PFRS”) (collectively “Plans”) which are cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plans established by the State of New Jersey to provide pension benefits for State and
local government employees. Benefit and employer contribution provisions are established by state statue and
can only be amended by new legislation passed by the State of New Jersey.
The general responsibility for the proper operation of the Plans is vested in each of the Plans’ Board of Trustees
(Board), and the pension committees established pursuant to Chapter 78 P.L. 2011. Chapter 78, P.L. 2011 grants
authority to amend the benefit terms of the Plan to the pension committees. The pension committees will have
the discretionary authority to modify the member contribution rate, formula for calculation of final compensation,
age at which a member may be eligible and the benefits for service and special retirement and benefits provided
for disability benefit. The Local portion of the Plans have attained the required "target funded ratio" in Fiscal Year
2012, thus a pension committee has been established for the Local Employer portion of the Plans. The State
portion of the Plans have not attained the required “target funded ratio” in fiscal Year 2012 or Fiscal Year 2013,
thus a pension committee has not yet been established for the State portion of the Plans.
A publicly available Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the State of New Jersey, Department of
the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues which include the financial statements, required
supplementary information, and detailed information about the PERS and PFRS fiduciary net position can be
obtained at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annrprts.shtml or by writing to the State of New Jersey,
Department of Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, P.O. Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625-0295.
Benefits Provided
Public Employees’ Retirement System
The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retirement, death and
disability benefits to substantially all full-time employees of the State or any county, municipality, school district or
public agency, provided the employee is not required to be a member of another state-administered retirement
system or other state pension fund or local jurisdiction’s pension fund. Pension benefits generally vest after ten
years of service.
The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:
Tier
1
2
3
4
5

Definition
Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55th of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 1 and
2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of
1/60th of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62
and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tiers 1 and 2 members
before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or more years of service credit and tier 5 with 30 or
more years of service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a
member retires prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with
their respective tier. Tier 1 members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least
52

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Notes To Financial Statements
December 31, 2015
13.

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

25 years of service. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service and have
not reached the service retirement age for the respective tier.
Police and Firemen’s Retirement Fund
The vesting and benefit provisions for PFRS are set by N.J.S.A. 43:16A. PFRS provides retirement, death and
disability benefits to substantially all full-time county and municipal police or firemen and state firemen or officer
employees with police powers appointed after June 30, 1944. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except
disability benefits which vest after four years of service.
The following represents the membership tiers for PFRS:
Tier
1
2
3

Definition
Members who were enrolled prior to May 22, 2010
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits are available at age 55 and are generally determined to be 2% of final compensation
for each year of creditable service, as defined, up to 30 years plus 1% of each year of service in excess of 30
years. Members may seek special retirement after achieving 25 years of creditable service, in which benefits
would equal 65% (tiers 1 an d 2 members) and 60% (tier 3 members) of final compensation plus 1% for each year
of creditable service over 25 years but not to exceed 30 years. Members may elect deferred retirement benefits
after achieving ten years of service, in which case benefits would begin at age 55 equal to 2% of final
compensation for each year of service.
Contributions
The contribution policy for PERS and PFRS is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and N.J.S.A. 43:16A, respectively, and
requires contributions by active members and contributing employers. PERS and PFRS covered employees are
required by state statute to contribute a certain percentage of their salaries to the Plans. The contribution
requirements of employees are established and may be amended by the Pension Plan Design Committee of the
respective plan. The PERS employee contribution rate was 6.92% for the period January 1, 2015 – June 30,
2015. The PERS contribution rate increased to 7.06% at July 1, 2015. The rate for PFRS employee contributions
is 10.0%.
The required employer contribution amounts are based on an actuarially determined rate which includes the
normal cost and unfunded accrued liability.
Contributions to the Plans for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:
Authority Contributions
2015
Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS)

$

Police and Fire Retirement
System (PFRS)

1,939,301

2014
$

366,966
$

2,306,267
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1,790,177

Total
$

365,039
$

2,155,216

3,729,478
732,005

$

4,461,483
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Employee Contributions
2015
Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS)

$

1,031,238

Police and Fire Retirement
System (PFRS)

2014
$

130,629
$

1,161,867

1,089,950 $
131,163

$

1,221,113 $

Total
2,121,188
261,792
2,382,980

The State of New Jersey is considered to be a non-employer entity that is legally responsible for making
contributions directly to PFRS due to the following legislation:
Chapter 511, P.L. 1991

Chapter 247, P.L. 2001
Chapter 8, P.L. 2000
Chapters 86 and 318,
P.L. 2001
Chapter 109, P.L.1979

Requires the State to pay for an increase in the benefit payable to the surviving
spouse of a retiree from 35% to 50% and raised the minimum benefit for $1,600
to $4,500
Requires the State to pay the increase in costs related to certain members who
transfer from PERS to PFRS
Requires the State to fund certain costs and accrued liabilities if the valuation of
assets is insufficient
Requires the State to pay for an increase in active duty benefits to the
beneficiary of a member who died in active duty
Requires extra State contributions of 1.1 percent of covered salary to provide
for an increase in retirement benefits from 50% to 60% of final average
compensation for members who retire with 25 years of service

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions
The Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability at December 31, 2015 is as follows:
PERS
PFRS
Total

$ 51,911,440
7,995,159
$ 59,906,599

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Authority’s proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the Authority’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participates, actuarially determined. The Authority’s proportion at June
30, 2015 and 2014 were:
June 30, 2015

June 30, 2014

PERS

.2313%

.2352%

PFRS

.0480%

.0478%
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For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Authority recognized pension expense as follows:

PERS
PFRS
PFRS – State Support
Total

Expressway
$ 4,454,001

Airport
$ 291,303
581,521
87,458
$ 960,282

$ 4,454,001

Total
$ 4,745,304
581,521
87,458
$ 5,414,283

In addition, the Authority recognized $87,458 of revenue for support provided by the State for PFRS.
At December 31, 2015, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pension from the following sources:
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pensions
PERS
Actuarial Experience

$

Change in assumptions

PFRS

1,032,021
4,645,728

Change in Proportion

-

$

Total

-

$

1,032,021

1,230,087

5,875,815

20,335

20,335

Difference between actual employer contributions
and employer's proporate share

1,011,116

213,735

1,224,851

Contributions made after measurement date

1,988,147

390,170

2,378,317

8,677,012

$ 1,854,327

$ 10,531,339

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources from Pensions

$

Deferred Inflows of Resources from Pensions
PERS
Actuarial Experience

$

-

PFRS
$ 57,467

Total
$

57,467

Difference between expected and actual investment
earnings

667,709

111,319

779,028

Change in proportionate share

788,761

168,954

957,715

$ 1,456,470

$ 337,740

$ 1,794,210

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources from Pensions

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year ending December 31:
PERS
$ 810,289
810,289
810,289
810,289
977,217

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
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PFRS
$ 219,717
219,717
219,717
219,717
247,547
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Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
July 1, 2014, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2015. The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation Rate
Salary Increases:
2012- 2021

PERS

PFRS

3.04%

3.04%

2.15 - 4.40%
based on age

2.6 – 9.48%
based on age

Thereafter

3.15 – 5.40%
based on age

3.60 – 10.48%
based on age

Investment Rate of Return

7.90%

7.90%

For PERS, mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality Tables
(setback 1 year for males and females) for service retirement and beneficiaries of former members with
adjustments for mortality improvements from the base year of 2012 based on Projection Scale AA. The RP-2000
Disabled Mortality Tables (setback 3 years for male and setback 1 year for females) are used to value disabled
retirees. The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2011.
For PFRS, mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables projected one year
using Projection Scale AA and one year using Projection Scale BB for male service retirements with adjustments
for mortality improvements from the base year based on Projection Scale BB. Mortality rates were based on the
RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables projected fourteen years using Projection Scale BB for female
service retirements and beneficiaries with adjustments for mortality improvements from the base year of 2014
based on Projection Scale BB. The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2014 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2013.
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (7.90% at
June 30, 2015) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of
Investments and Division of Pension and Benefits, the Boards of Trustees and the actuaries. Best estimate of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the Plans’ target asset allocation as of June
30, 2015 are summarized in the following table:
Long-Term
Target
Expected Real
Asset Class
Allocation
Rate of Return
Cash
U.S. Treasuries
Investment Grade Credit
Mortgages
High Yield Bonds
Inflation-Indexed Bonds
Broad US Equities
Developed Foreign Equities
Emerging Market Equities

5.00%
1.75%
10.00%
2.10%
2.00%
1.50%
27.25%
12.00%
6.40%
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1.64%
1.79%
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4.03%
3.25%
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6.88%
10.00%
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Asset Class

Target
Allocation

Private Equity
Hedge Funds / Absolute Return
Real Estate (Property)
Commodities
Global Debt ex US
REIT

9.25%
12.00%
2.00%
1.00%
3.50%
4.25%

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return
12.41%
4.72%
6.83%
5.32%
-0.40%
5.12%

Discount Rate
Public Employees’ Retirement System
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.90% and 5.39% as of June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments of 7.90%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.80% and 4.29% as of June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general
obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from Plan members will be made at the current member
contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on the average of the last five years
of contributions made in relation to the last five years of actuarially determined contributions. Based on those
assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit
payments of current Plan members through 2033. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on Plan
investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2033, and the municipal bond rate was applied to
projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.
Police and Firemen’s Retirement Fund
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.79% and 6.32% as of June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments of 7.9%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.80% and 4.29% as of June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general
obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from Plan members will be at the current member
contributions rates and that contributions from employers and the nonemployer contributing entity will be made
based on the average of the last five years of contributions. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current Plan members
through 2045. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on Plan investments was applied to projected
benefit payments through 2045, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that
date in determining the total pension liability.
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Sensitivity of the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate
The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount
rate as disclosed above, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the
current rate:
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability

Pension Plan

1% Decrease
In Discount Rate

At Current Discount
Rate

1% Increase
In Discount Rate

PERS

$ 64,519,569

$ 51,911,440

$ 41,340,877

PFS

$ 11,464495

$ 7,995,159

$ 6,439,099

Pension Plans fiduciary net position
Detailed information about the Pension Plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued PERS
and PFRS financial reports.

14.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH INSURANCE

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets,
error and omission, injury to employees, professional liability, airport liability, environmental and natural disasters.
The Authority purchased commercial insurance to manage all of these risks except for workers compensation,
general liability and auto. Settled claims have not exceeded this coverage in any of the past three years.
Risk Management
Expressway
Effective September 1, 2005, the Authority established a Self-Insurance fund program for certain risk areas. The
Authority’s per occurrence self insurance retention levels are $500,000 for worker’s compensation, $500,000 for
auto liability, and $200,000 for general liability. The Reserve for Insurance Claims balance at December 31, 2015
is $2,410,250.
Risk Management-Airport
During 2007, the Authority established a Self-Insurance Reserve for certain risk areas related to Airport activity.
The Authority’s per occurrence self insurance retention levels are $300,000 for worker’s compensation, $500,000
for auto liability, and $500,000 for general liability. An allocation of these retention levels have been made based
on the number of employees currently employed at the Airport. No charges were made to the reserve during
2014. The reserve balance as of December 31, 2015 is $611,147.
The Authority has an umbrella excess liability policy over those self-insurance retention levels of $30,000,000 per
occurrence and $30,000,000 annual aggregate.
The Authority is party to various legal actions and disputes. Although the ultimate effect, if any, of these matters is
not presently determinable, management believes that collectively they will not have a material effect on the
results of operations or the financial position of the Authority. None of these cases are anticipated to exceed the
insurance limits described above.
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Health Insurance
Beginning July 1, 2015, the Authority enrolled its employees in the New Jersey State Health Benefits Plan
(SHBP). In accordance with Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, employees are required to contribute to their premiums
based on the their salary and the type of coverage selected. Prior to enrollment in the SHBP, the Authority was
self-insured for health benefits and established a self-insurance reserve. A reserve balance is maintained for
claims relating to services received prior to July 1, 2015. As of December 31, 2015 the balance in the reserve is
$3,133,733 for Expressway and $470,692 for Airport.

15.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

A.

Non-Union Employees

It is the Authority’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits.
Accumulation and payment of vacation and sick leave for agreement employees is based on the collective
bargaining agreements with the various unions. As required under GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for
Compensated Absences, the compensated absences should be accrued as a liability when earned and the
liability should be measured using the pay rates in effect at the balance sheet date
Full-time, non-union employees are entitled to fifteen paid sick leave days each year. Unused sick leave may be
accumulated and carried forward to the subsequent year. If an employee was hired prior to February 2005, the
Authority compensates them for unused sick leave upon retirement or upon resignation if the employee vests in
the pension system when retirement age has been reached.
For employees hired after February 2005, the Authority only compensates them for unused sick leave upon
retirement or upon resignation if the employee is eligible to immediately retire under the pension system.
Effective November 18, 2010, the maximum payout to an employee at retirement is $15,000 at the employee’s
current rate of pay. Any employee having a balance of $17,500 or over on the effective date will be eligible to
cash out at the higher rate. Additionally, if the employee’s balance falls below the $17,500 prior to retirement they
are no longer eligible to cash out at the higher rate. A full year’s vacation entitlement may be carried to the next
calendar year. Any carried-over vacation time must be taken during the subsequent year or it is lost.
Part-time employees are not entitled to compensated absences.
Compensatory time for full-time employees cannot accrue beyond eighty hours and must be taken within twelve
months of being earned. The use of compensatory time must be approved by a department Director. The
Authority may, at its discretion, purchase back compensatory time at the employee’s rate of pay when the
compensatory time was earned.
B.

Union Employees

Vacation Time
In accordance with the union contract in effect in 2007, members of the International Federation of Professional
and Technical Engineers, Local 196, Chapter 2 and Local 193, Chapter A, states that ten vacation days may be
carried to the next calendar year for Local 196 and Local 193. Any carried-over vacation time must be taken
during the subsequent year or it is lost.
Members of the Atlantic City International Airport Fire Fighters, Local S-18 of the International Association of Fire
Fighters, AFL-CIO, CLC may carry up to one year’s vacation allotment. Any carried over vacation time must be
taken during the subsequent year or it is lost.
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Sick Time
Members of the International Federation of Professional and Technical Engineers, Local 196, Chapter 2 and
Local 193, Chapter A, are entitled to cash out sick time up to $17,500. The following percentages apply:
(a)

For employees who resign in good standing or retire, but are not eligible to receive pension payments under
PERS:
- 50% of present salary for the first 150 days of accumulated sick days.
- 100% of present salary for accumulated sick leave in excess of 150 days.
- Maximum of $17,500

(b)

For employees who retire and are immediately eligible to receive payments under PERS:
- 75% of present salary for the first 150 days of accumulated sick days.
- 100% of present salary for accumulated sick leave in excess of 150 days.
- Maximum of $17,500

Local S-18 members are entitled to cash out sick leave up to $17,500 at the employee’s rate of pay at retirement.
Unused sick time earned will not be paid upon resignation, termination or layoff.
Compensatory Time
Under the contract for Local 196, Chapter 2, compensatory time can be accrued up to a maximum of forty hours
per contract year but can re-accumulate up to forty hours as the time is used.
Under the contract for S-18, compensatory time can be accrued up to a maximum of two hundred and forty (240)
hours per contract year. Compensatory time must be taken within twelve (12) months of being earned, otherwise
payment of unused time will be paid in the first pay of December.
C.

Accrued Expense

The Authority’s liability for compensated absences is included in Current Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted
Assets in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The Authority’s accrued liability for compensated
absences, including additional amounts accrued for Social Security, Medicare and pension plan contributions as
of December 31, 2015 is as follows:

Sick Time
Vacation Time
Compensatory Time

16.

Expressway

Airport

Total

$ 593,319
405,263
92,179
$ 1,090,761

$ 174,284
99,461
73,490
$ 347,235

$ 767,603
504,724
165,669
$ 1,437,996

SOUTH JERSEY TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

The South Jersey Transportation Planning Organization is a metropolitan planning organization whose function is
to develop transportation programs for urbanized areas of the State in order to encourage and promote the
development of intermodal transportation systems that maximize mobility and minimize air pollution. The New
Jersey Department of Transportation Grant for Administration Staff Support for the SJTPO is designed to
reimburse the Authority for its expenses incurred each year for the SJTPO. These expenses typically include
salaries, fringe benefits and non-salary direct expenses.
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Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 27:25A-24, the Authority established a transportation project known as the Atlantic City
International Airport Effective July 1, 2013, the Authority entered into a operating and maintenance agreement
with AvPorts that was set to expire on June 30, 2014 for operations, maintenance and support service at ACY.
Under this arrangement, the Authority is entitled to receive all of the revenue and must pay all the expenses
associated with the operation of ACY terminal operations. This agreement has been mutually extended a number
of times with the final one year extension to conclude September 30, 2016.
Effective April 15, 1998, the Authority assumed control of the runways and taxiways at ACY pursuant to
Resolution 1998-14. The Authority executed a lease and cooperative agreement with the William J. Hughes
Technical Center for certain lands, facilities and equipment for the Atlantic City International Airport. The
execution of this agreement requires the Authority to maintain the airfield at ACY, but it also allows for the
collection of landing fees.
Pursuant to the Act, the Authority has the power to set rates and charges at ACY. The Authority has adopted a
compensatory rates and charges methodology. Rates and charges are subject to review and adjustment every
two years. Currently, the Authority is operating under the Rates and Charges Resolution adopted June 25, 2002.

18.

STATE PAYMENT

Pursuant to an agreement dated November 17, 1983 (“State Contract”), between the Authority (as successor to
the New Jersey Expressway Authority) and the New Jersey Department of Transportation (“NJDOT”), the
Authority is obligated to pay to the NJDOT, annually during the term of the State Contract, a guaranteed minimum
sum of $2,500,000 (“State Payment”). The State Payment is payable in equal monthly installments on or before
the twenty-first day of each month for deposit into the State Payment Fund. Subject to the pledge of the Third
Amended and Restated Resolution, the Authority has pledged, pursuant to the terms of the State Contract, all
revenues for the payment of the State Payment, which pledge is subordinate in rank and right of payment to that
of Subordinated Indebtedness issued pursuant to the Third Amended and Restated Resolution.
On May 19, 2009, the State Contract was amended to provide for a reduction in the amount of the State Payment
by the amount of the NJDOT’s Payment Obligation regarding the 2009 Subordinated Bonds (as hereinafter
defined) to the extent such NJDOT’s Payment Obligation is unpaid in any Fiscal Year. See Note 26; (“South Inlet
Transportation Improvements Project”) regarding the Authority’s issuance of the 2009 Subordinated Bonds.

19.

ELECTRONIC TOLL COLLECTION

In December, 1996, the Authority, along with the New Jersey Turnpike Authority (the “Turnpike Authority”), the
New Jersey Highway Authority (the “Highway Authority”), the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey, and the
State of Delaware, Acting By and Through Its Department of Transportation (each a “Participating Agency” and,
collectively, the “Participating Agencies”) established a Consortium (the “Consortium”) for the purpose of
implementing an E-ZPass electronic toll collection system (the “Electronic Toll Collection System” or the “ETC
System”) for the toll roadways operated by the Participating Agencies.
The Authority’s participation in this Consortium resulted from its desire to provide E-ZPass as a method of
payment to its patrons. Consequently, the Authority’s participation in the Consortium was limited to the
implementation and operation of the Customer Service Center/Violations Processing Center (the “CSC/VPC”) and
the fiber optic system portions of the ETC Project.
E-ZPass became available as method of payment on the Expressway on November 11, 1998 in connection with
the opening of the Consortium Customer Service Center. ACS (subsequently Xerox) began operating and
maintaining the E-ZPass CSC/VPC for the toll roads operated by the NJ Agencies on or about March 25, 2003
and because the Authority participates in the CSC/VPC portion of the contract only; pursuant to the Agreement,
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Xerox shall invoice the Authority on a monthly basis for 3.6% of all amounts due with regard to those services (the
“CSC Services”) pertaining to establishment, operation and maintenance of the Customer Service Center (the
“CSC”), including the portion of the CSC to be used for the processing of toll collection violations (the “VPC”).
Payments to be made by the Authority under the Xerox Agreement constitute Operating Expenses of the
Expressway Project. The Participating Agencies entered into a new contract with Xerox in October 15, 2015 for a
term of eight year.
Payments that the Authority may be required to make under the Xerox Agreement and prior agreements relating
to the E-ZPass project constitute Pledged Project Operating Expenses payable from Revenues prior to Debt
Service on the Bonds.

20.

INTERFUNDS AND AIRPORT SUBSIDY

The total interfund payable from the Airport Fund to the Expressway Fund at December 31, 2015 is $34,731,961
which is payable from unrestricted funds.
The third amended and restated resolution authorizing bonds and other obligations, Section 5.02(I) establishes an
Airport Fund. Accordingly, the Airport Fund is maintained separately from the Expressway Fund and the financial
results are separately presented in the accompanying Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. Any excess direct
operating expense incurred over revenue earned at the Airport is subsidized by the Expressway Fund and is a
liability of the Airport Fund to the Expressway Fund. The Authority periodically transfers amounts from the
Expressway Fund to the Airport Fund to subsidize Airport operations. When such transfers are made, the
Authority establishes a loan receivable from the Airport Fund to the Expressway Fund for the amount transferred.
The loan is payable to the Expressway Fund from unrestricted funds of the Airport Fund when the monies are
used on Airport operating expenses, and the loan is payable from restricted funds of the Airport Fund when the
monies are used on Airport capital expenditures. These loans are payable to the Expressway Fund when Airport
revenue exceeds Airport direct operating expense in any given year, but in no event later than ten years from the
date of the loan. Any amounts not repaid by the end of the term due will be written off at the end of the ten-year
period. During 2015, $2,245,316 was written off.

21.

CRDA PARKING FEE AGREEMENT

On October 10, 1997, in connection with the Atlantic City Expressway Connector Project, the Authority entered
into a Parking Fee Agreement with the Casino Reinvestment Development Authority (“CRDA”).
Pursuant to the Agreement, a portion of certain statutory parking fees (“Marina Parking Fees”) receivable by
CRDA from marina parking facilities used in conjunction with any new licensed casino hotel construction and
located on land in the Marina District (also commonly known as the H-Tract) will be payable to the Authority.
These parking fees pertain to the minimum charge per day for each motor vehicle parked, garaged or stored in a
parking space in the parking facility, other than for motor vehicles owned or leased by the owner or operator of
such facility or by an employee of the casino hotel which owns or leases such facility.
The maximum amount payable by CRDA under the Parking Fee Agreement is an amount sufficient to amortize
$65 million in Authority bonds issued to finance the Atlantic City Expressway Connector Project and certain
allocated costs of issuance. CRDA’s payment obligations under the Parking Fee Agreement, as amended by the
First, Second and Third Amendments dated June 15, September 20, 2001, and March 2005 respectively are
subordinate to the prior lien on the Marina Parking Fees of certain parking revenue bonds of CRDA, plus liens
associated with two additional issuances of CRDA parking revenue bonds. During 2015, the Authority recognized
revenue of $2,755,446 compared to $2,697,182 in 2014.
Through December 31, 2015, CRDA has paid the Authority a total of $35,762,035. Because of the subordination
provisions described above, there are no assurances that the amount of Marina Parking Fees available to enable
CRDA to pay the Authority will be sufficient for such purposes.
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TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

Effective January 1, 2004, the Authority acquired and assumed the operation of the “Comprehensive
Transportation System” in Camden and Gloucester Counties, previously operated by the Camden County
Improvement Authority. The Comprehensive Transportation System includes (i) the transportation needs of the
Work Force New Jersey and Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (‘TANF”) recipients, post-TANF recipients,
welfare clients, low income individuals, and other transit dependents, (ii) the operation of a Job Access/Reverse
Commute Program in Camden County, (iii) a partnership with New Jersey Transit to provide local shuttle motor
bus passenger service in and around Camden County, and (iv) transportation services for residents of Gloucester
County to and from the Pureland Industrial Park from Westville and Woodbury, Gloucester County. Funding from
the various state grants above are used to fund operating costs. Operating expenses incurred are offset by
operating revenues from each respective grantor agency, as well as revenue from local private employers.
Services include an east-west shuttle service in Gloucester County to enable people to get to work at the
Pureland Industrial Center. The Authority also continued to provide shuttle services at the airport for passenger’s
convenience to and from the surface parking lots, as well as transportation services for Camden County
Department of Health and Senior Services, and shuttle bus services at the Richard Stockton State University.
During 2012, the Authority entered into an agreement with Burlington County (“County”), New Jersey to provide
operations for a new deviated fixed route system (“Burlink”). This agreement allows for the Authority to provide
the operation of maintenance of County vehicles and service the agreed upon routes. This contract is for a two (2)
year period beginning on January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2013. During 2014, the contract with Burlington
County was extended an additional two (2) years through December of 2015. During 2015, the Authority realized
$1,115,372 in program revenue compared to $1,063,461 in 2014.
Also, the Authority has entered into a shared services agreements with Rowan University to provide shuttle bus
services between Rowan University, Camden Campus and Rowan University, Robinson Hall, Glassboro for its
students, employees and patrons. During 2015, the Authority realized $304,130 in program revenue compared to
$174,102 in 2014.

23.

RELATED PARTY

As of June 30, 2005, a board member was appointed to the Authority Board of Commissioners. This individual is
the brother of one of the partners in a law firm that provided representation and received compensation from the
Authority during 2015. During 2015, this firm billed the Authority $10,755 for services rendered. At December 31,
2015, $3,255 was payable and due to the firm. As of the date of this report, all outstanding amounts for the year
ending December 31, 2015 have been paid. This commissioner does not direct legal work to any law firms on
behalf of the Authority and additionally, abstains from voting when legal invoices are presented to the Board of
Commissioners for approval.

24. OPERATING LEASE
The Authority currently has a lease agreement with a private company to provide office space for the SJTPO
office in Vineland, New Jersey. This lease expired in 2010 but was renewed on August 25, 2010 for a new five (5)
year lease term expiring on August 24, 2015, but was later reset to include new terms extending the Lease
Agreement through August 24, 2017. Lease expenses incurred for 2015 and 2014 were $66,257 and $67,860
respectively.
At December 31, 2015, the future minimum lease payments are as follows:
Operating
2016
2017

$

82,110
54,740

$

136,850
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25. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
The Authority has implemented GASB Statement No. 45 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Employers for
Post-employment Benefits Other than Pensions” (“GASB 45”). This Statement establishes the standards for the
measurement, recognition, and display of Other Post-employment Benefits (“OPEB”) expense and related
liabilities, note disclosures, and if applicable, required supplementary information (“RSI”) in the financial reports of
state and local governmental employers.
Post-employment benefits are part of an exchange of salaries and benefits for employee services rendered. Most
OPEB have been funded on a pay-as-you-go basis and have been reported in financial statements when the
promised benefits are paid. GASB 45 requires state and local government’s financial reports to reflect
systematic, accrual-basis measurement and recognition of OPEB costs over a period that approximates
employees’ years of service and provides information about actuarial accrued liabilities associated with the OPEB
and whether and to what extent progress is being made in funding the plan.
Plan Description
The Authority offers group health care, prescription drugs, dental, vision benefits and Medicare Part B premium
reimbursements to its retired employees (and for eligible dependents and survivors). Authority employees who
retire or terminate employment on or after age 62 with 15 or more years of service with the Authority or with 25 or
more years of service in the New Jersey Public Employees Retirement System or are disabled with 10 or more
years of service with the Authority are eligible for post retirement benefits. Medical and prescription drug benefits
are paid through the New Jersey State Health Benefits Plan whose premiums are based on the benefits paid
during the year. Dental benefits are paid through a plan under which benefits are paid by the service provider on
behalf of the Authority. Vision benefits for participants and Medicare Part B premium reimbursements for those
age 65 and older are paid directly by the Authority.

The actuarial valuation report was based on 403 total participants including 150 retirees and surviving spouses.
Current grandfathered retirees are not required to contribute toward the cost of the postretirement benefits. Any
employee who retires after satisfying the eligibility requirements who had less than 20 years of PERS or PFRS
service as of June 28, 2011, shall be required to contribute toward the cost of postretirement healthcare benefits.
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
The Authority’s annual OPEB cost represents the accrued cost for post-employment benefits under GASB 45.
The cumulative difference between the annual OPEB cost and the benefits paid during a year will result in a net
OPEB obligation, included on the balance sheet. The annual OPEB cost is equal to the annual required
contribution (ARC) less adjustment if a net OPEB obligation exists. The ARC is equal to the normal cost and
amortization of the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) plus interest.
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates and assumptions about the probability of occurrences of
events far into the future, including future employment, mortality and healthcare cost trends. Actuarially
determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future.
In the January 1, 2015 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit cost method was used for all participants. The
actuarial assumptions used to project future costs included a discount rate of 4.50%, an annual medical
healthcare and prescription drug cost trend rate of 12.5% in 2015, with a gradual decline of 1% per year until an
ultimate health care cost trend rate is reached in 2023 of 5.0%. Medicare Part B premiums are assumed to
increase by 5.0% each year. Dental and Vision costs are assumed to increase by 4.0% annually.
The Authority has chosen to recognize the full unfunded actuarial liability when GASB 45 was implemented.
Gains and losses are recognized in the year that they occur.
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24. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Plan Changes Since Prior Evaluation
The Authority changed its post-employment plan design in 2015 through enrollment in the New Jersey State
Health Benefits Plan. Changes include an increase in the number of years of service required to become eligible
for retirement benefits, as well as requiring contributions from retirees toward the cost of postretirement
healthcare benefits.
In the January 1, 2015 actuarial valuation, the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) for the year ending December
31, 2015 was projected as follows:
Expressway
Normal Cost with Interest

Airport

Total

$ 376,189

$ 2,507,926

$

2,131,737

157,871

27,860

185,730

$

2,289,608

$ 404,048

$ 2,693,656

Amortization of Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued Liability

Other Post-employment Benefit Costs and Obligations
The following reflects the components of the 2015 annual OPEB Costs, amounts paid, and changes to the net
accrued OPEB obligation based on the January 2015 actuarial valuation and actual OPEB payments made or
accrued during 2015:
Expressway

Airport

Total

$ 72,649,962

$ 13,027,315

$ 85,677,277

Annual Required Contribution

2,289,608

404,048

2,693,656

Interest on Net OPEB Obligation

3,277,155

578,322

3,855,477

Annual OPEB Cost

5,566,763

982,370

6,549,133

(2,026,012)

(357,532)

(2,383,544)

3,540,751

624,838

4,165,589

$ 76,190,713

$ 13,652,153

$ 89,842,866

36.39%

36.39%

36.39%

Net OPEB Obligation at beginning of year

Employer contributions
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation
Net OPEB Obligation at end of year
Percentage of OPEB
Cost Contributed
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25.

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Required Supplementary Information:
Expressway
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets

$

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)
Total Unfunded AAL (UAAL)

$

12,885,949

Total

$

85,906,329

$ 73,020,380

$ 12,885,949

$ 85,906,329

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

$ 15,034,764

$ 2,826,144

$ 17,860,908

485.68%

455.96%

480.97%

Funded ratio
Covered Payroll

73,020,380

Airport

UAAL as a % of Covered Payroll

Beginning in 2008, the Authority established an account for OPEB contributions and authorized contributions up
to $2 million per year. During 2015, the Authority contributed $2 million to this account with cumulative
contributions of $16,000,000. The balance in the cash and investments accounts at December 31, 2015 was
$17,515,788. Had this contribution been made to Trust administered by a third-party, the actuarial value of the
plan assets as well as other significant plan data would be as follows:
Expressway

Airport

Total

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)

$ 14,888,420
73,020,380

$ 2,627,368
12,885,949

$ 17,515,788
85,906,329

Total Unfunded AAL (UAAL)

$ 58,131,960

$ 10,258,581

$ 68,390,541

25.61%

25.61%

25.61%

$ 15,034,764

$ 2,826,144

$ 17,860,908

386.65%

362.99%

382.91%

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets

Funded ratio
Covered Payroll
UAAL as a % of Covered Payroll

26.

SOUTH INLET TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT

Pursuant to a tri-party agreement, dated May 18, 2009, by and among the Casino Reinvestment Development
Authority (“CRDA”), New Jersey Department of Transportation (“NJDOT”) and the Authority (“South Inlet Funding
Agreement”), CRDA has agreed to undertake the construction of the South Inlet Transportation Improvements
Project. The Authority has agreed to finance the NJDOT’s construction portion of the costs of the South Inlet
Transportation Improvements Project, in the amount of $17,000,000 through the issuance of the 2009
Subordinated Bonds pursuant to the Subordinated Resolution. See footnote #8 for more information regarding
the 2009 Subordinated Bonds.
Pursuant to the terms of the South Inlet Funding Agreement, NJDOT has agreed to pay the Authority, subject to
State Legislative appropriations and the availability of funds therefore, in each State Fiscal Year for a period not to
exceed twenty (20) years, an amount equal to debt service on the 2009 Subordinated Bonds, plus all costs,
liabilities and administrative expenses incurred by the Authority in connection therewith (collectively, “NJDOT’s
Payment Obligation”), which aggregate amount shall not exceed $2,500,000 in each year. The amount received
by the Authority from the NJDOT for NJDOT’s Payment Obligation payable under the South Inlet Funding
Agreement constitutes revenues under the Third Amended and Restated Bond Resolution.
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26.

SOUTH INLET TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT (CONTINUED)

On August 4, 2009, the Authority issued $19,085,000 of Subordinated Bonds, $17,000,000 of which was
transferred to the CRDA on behalf of the NJDOT in accordance with the terms of the South Inlet Funding
Agreement. NJDOT is scheduled to repay the Authority based on the schedule outlined below:

27.

Year

Amount

Year

Amount

2016

$ 1,499,819

2023

$ 1,499,425

2017

1,500,419

2024

1,503,125

2018

1,499,619

2025

1,499,350

2019

1,502,419

2026

1,503,325

2020

1,503,619

2027

1,501,338

2021

1,501,957

2028

1,501,500

2022

1,502,331

POLLUTION REMEDIATION COST

Effective 2008, pollution remediation costs are required to be charged in accordance with the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations. The Statement
establishes standards for determining when expected pollution remediation outlays should be accrued as a
liability or, if appropriate, capitalized. An operating expense and corresponding liability, measured at its current
value using the expected cash flow method, should be recognized for certain pollution remediation obligations
that are no longer able to be capitalized as a component of a capital project. Pollution remediation obligations,
which are estimates and subject to changes resulting from price increases or reductions, technology, or changes
in applicable laws or regulations, occur when any one of the following obligating events take place:






The Authority is compelled to take pollution remediation action because of an imminent endangerment.
The Authority is in violation of a pollution prevention-related permit or license.
The Authority is named by a regulator as a responsible or potentially responsible party to participate in
remediation.
The Authority is named or there is evidence to indicate that it will be named in a lawsuit that compels
participation in remediation activities, or
The Authority voluntarily commences or legally obligates itself to commence remediation efforts.

As of December 31, 2015, the Authority has determined that it is not required to recognize any operating expense
or record a corresponding liability for any pollution remediation obligation.

28.

ATLANTIC CITY INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

Below are detailed schedules of Atlantic City International Airport’s (“ACY”) operating revenues and expenses.
These schedules are presented to provide additional detail of the single-line item entitled “Airport” presented in
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position on pages 16, 22 and 75, in the
accompanying financial statements.
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28.

ATLANTIC CITY INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (CONTINUED)
2015

2014

R even u es:
N on-Aeronautic al:
Airside
Lands ide
Parking
Term inal

$

Aeronautical:
Airfield/Airs ide
Lands ide
Term inal

126,082
659,085
6,590,996
1,511,641

$

2,688,633
30,000
406,219

89,782
813,258
5,854,463
1,467,026

2,700,796
30,000
285,100

$

12,012,656

$

11,240,425

$

1,573,679
447,598
1,026,529
65,858
2,022,817
30,747
6,076
2,628,789
3,561,112
1,042,897
119,128
2,493,480
1,093,507
257,723

$

1,305,788
790,451
892,092
51,572
2,071,759
33,152
13,352
2,559,630
3,502,613
1,306,110
163,535
2,503,800
1,039,360
248,663

$

16,369,940

$

16,481,877

Exp enses:
C entral Acc ounts
M arketing
SJ TA Adminis tration
AC Y C ustomer Servic e
F irefighter Adm inistration
Operations - Airs ide
Operations - Lands ide
Operations - T erminal
N J State Polic e LEO ACY
M aintenanc e - Airside
M aintenanc e - Landside
M aintenac e - Term inal
Park ing
AC Y Shuttle

29.

AGREEMENT WITH THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NEW YORK AND NEW JERSEY (“PANY/NJ”)

On July 1, 2013, the SJTA entered into a Management Agreement (“Agreement”) with the Port Authority of New
York/New Jersey (“Port Authority”). The term of this Agreement is for a fifteen (15) years. Under the terms of this
agreement the Port Authority shall provide general management services (the “Services”) to the SJTA in
connection with Atlantic City International Airport “(Airport”) operations for the use and benefit of the general
public during the term. Such management services shall include conducting the daily operations of the Airport in
conjunction with the SJTA enabling Act, N.J.S.A. 27:25A-1 et seq., and its bylaws, as well as the FAA Operating
Certificate. In performing its responsibilities under this Agreement, the Port Authority shall do so in a manner
normally associated with sound, safe, innovative, prudent and efficient airport management and shall provide all
services as are customary and normal in conformance with SJTA policies and procedures, and all other
applicable laws, rules and regulations. Concessions, Parking Operations, Capital Improvement Plan, Operating
Budget and Plan; Capital Plan, Revenue Generating and Cost Savings Initiatives and Press and Media Releases.
The SJTA has agreed to pay an annual Management Fee during the term of the agreement in the amount of
$500,000 in equal monthly installments which began on August 1, 2013.
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30.

RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR’S BALANCES

Net position has been restated as required by the implementation of GASB 68, as discussed in notes 1 and 13
above.
EXPRESSWAY
Beginning net position as previously
reported at December 31, 2014

$

149,646,613

AIRPORT

TOTAL

$ 95,345,715

$ 244,992,328

Prior period adjustment - Implementation GASB 68
Net pension liability (measurement date)
Deferred outflows - Authority's contributions
made during 2015

(41,339,449)
1,866,075

Total prior period adjustment
Net position as restated, January 1, 2015

31.

(39,473,374)
$

110,173,239

(9,355,892)
512,242
(8,843,650)
$ 86,502,065

(50,695,341)
2,378,317
(48,317,024)
$ 196,675,304

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated events occurring after December 31, 2015 for possible adjustment to or disclosure in
the financial statements through April 29, 2016, the date on which the financial statements were available to be
issued. Based on this evaluation, the Authority has determined that no subsequent events have occurred that
require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
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South Jersey Transportation Authority
Schedules of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabilitiy
December 31, 2015
Public Employees' Retirement System
2015
Authority's proportion of the net pension liability

*

0.231252%

Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability

$

51,911,440

Authority's covered payroll

$

14,757,134

Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a
percentage of its covered payroll

351.8%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability

47.9%

Police and Firemen's Retirement System
2015
Authority's proportion of the net pension liability

0.480000%

Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability

$

7,995,159

Authority's covered payroll

$

1,306,281

Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a
percentage of its covered payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability

612.1%

56.3%

* The Authority adopted GASB 68 in 2015; therfore only one year
is presented in the above schedule.
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South Jersey Transportation Authority
Schedules of Authority's Contributions
December 31, 2015
Public Employees' Retirement System
2015
Contractually required contribution

$

Contributions in realtion to the contractually required contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)

*

1,988,147
1,988,147

$

Authority's covered-employee payroll

-

14,757,134

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

13.5%

Police and Firemen's Retirement System
2015
Contractually required contribution

$

375,187

Contributions in realtion to the contractually required contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)

375,187
$

Authority's covered-employee payroll

*

-

1,306,281

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

* The Authority adopted GASB 68 in 2015; therfore only one year
is presented in the above schedule.
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-

2,387,096

35,187,921

8,144,243

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
$ 70,619,301
OF RESOURCES

See Independent Auditor's Report.

2,387,096

8,144,243

32,800,825

-

-

-

-

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Related to Pensions
Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

62,475,058

Infrastructure Capital Assets:
Infrastructure - Equipment
Infrastructure
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Infrastructure Capital Assets

Total Assets

-

Non-Infrastructure Capital Assets:
Buildings and Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Non-Infrastructure Capital Assets

17,515,788

$

32,800,825

44,959,270

17,515,788

29,892,846

305,988
1,530

4,388,665
799,622
1,748,078
134,496
56,729
16,574,897

745,514

10,514

$

1,844,433 $

78,125,666

-

78,125,666

-

-

-

-

78,125,666

47,767,729

8,417

23,568,942
6,780,578

Unrestricted Accounts
Airport
General
Fund
Reserve Fund

20,071,537 $
1,021,423
33,035
130,788

-

$

Total Non-Depreciable Capital Assets

Capital Assets:
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land and Rights of Way
Construction in Progress

Total Restricted Assets

Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Grants Receivable
Interfunds Receivable
Interest Receivable

Total Unrestricted Assets

Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Change Funds
Interest and Dividends Receivable
Accounts Receivable, net of allowance
for uncollectible accounts of $98,000
Grants Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
Security Deposits
Inventory
Interfunds Receivable

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

Revenue
Fund

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Net Position - Fund Financial Statements
as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals as of December 31, 2014

$

$

19,805,765

-

19,805,765

-

-

-

19,805,765

7,610,014

-

7,610,014

-

-

-

7,610,014

1,608,036

16,287,754

-

2,173,630
3,828,348

$

$

$

$

72

208,582

-

208,582

-

-

-

208,582

208,335

247

-

Rehabilitation State Payment
and Repair Fund
Fund

3,518,011

-

Debt Service
Fund

$

$

40,732,900

-

40,732,900

-

-

-

40,732,900

1,507,322
263,641

3,629,482
35,332,455

-

$

$

Restricted Accounts
Debt Service
Reserve Fund

224,295

-

224,295

-

-

-

224,295

224,295

-

-

Rebate
Fund

$

$

26,047,779

-

26,047,779

-

-

-

26,047,779

12,626,995
12,688

157,391
1,705,705
11,545,000

-

Subordinated
Debt Fund

$

$

699,950,382

1,716,100

1,716,100

698,234,282

22,029,599
568,274,640
(231,839,400)
358,464,839

190,843,243
(74,080,864)
116,762,379

170,431,474

146,921,642
23,509,832

52,575,590

11,472,065
14,516,109
79,747
477,513
26,030,156

-

Construction
Fund

-

(152,728,365)

-

-

-

(58,492,893)

(58,492,893)

(94,235,472)

(94,235,472)

$

$ (152,728,365) $

$

Consolidation
Eliminations

825,784,240

12,247,439

10,531,339
1,716,100

813,536,801

22,029,599
568,274,640
(231,839,400)
358,464,839

190,843,243
(74,080,864)
116,762,379

170,431,474

146,921,642
23,509,832

106,227,820

20,950,826
72,898,405
11,624,747
477,513
276,329

61,650,289

5,134,179
799,622
2,054,066
136,026
56,729
-

$

45,484,912 $
7,802,001
43,549
139,205

2015

Totals

829,763,260

2,024,531

2,024,531

827,738,729

19,566,569
529,744,097
(209,446,798)
339,863,868

183,971,571
(63,149,026)
120,822,545

203,926,383

146,921,642
57,004,741

105,398,340

28,699,901
63,649,787
12,411,000
395,348
242,304

57,727,593

4,908,518
738,731
2,418,007
120,820
115,986
-

42,613,448
6,629,641
44,532
137,910

2014

$
$

73

$
$

$
$

427,168

63,488,077

1,367,042

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS
204,203,005
OF RESOURCES

See Independent Auditor's Report.

427,168

1,367,042

Related to Pensions

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

42,859

-

42,859

3,794,956

-

3,794,956

1,395,161

-

1,395,161

208,334

-

208,334

2,689,681

-

2,689,681

224,126

-

224,126

16,385,298

-

16,385,298

504,054,740

-

-

504,054,740

(152,728,365)

-

(152,728,365)

643,757,871

1,794,210

1,794,210

641,963,661

584,770,933

-

-

584,770,933

553,191,100

63,060,909

608,262,091

202,835,963

-

Total Liabilities

444,818,636

467,478,823
444,818,636

458,477,626
13,658,990

24,834,673

124,949,792

24,744,434

10,331,125

9,014,318

25,016,102

2,619,320
1,446,719
620,235
208,334
1,277,217
1,010,499
7,230,985
-

6,835,399

3,599,874
1,639,831
242,496
208,334
2,321,651
1,363,776
6,625,822
-

8,685,468

Total Non-Current Liabilities

13,658,990

(51,884,389)

(51,884,389)

(100,843,976)

85,677,277
-

-

59,236,104

2,321,651
1,363,776

1,639,818
242,496

-

89,842,866
59,906,599

-

224,126

106,636
13

-

4,771,626
412,682
108,273
1,542,818
-

2014

13,652,152
11,182,521

-

2,689,681

224,126

-

6,389,337 $
738,063
120,072
1,437,996
-

Totals

76,190,714
48,724,078

-

208,334

2,689,681

-

(100,843,976)

$

2015

35,000

-

1,395,161

208,334

-

$

Consolidation
Eliminations

35,000

-

3,794,956

1,395,161

-

Construction
Fund

35,000

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Expenses
Other Postemployment Benefits other
than Pensions
Net Pension Liability
Bonds Payable, Net of Discounts and
Premium of ($18,037,626)

1,081,839

301,718

3,493,238

-

Subordinated
Debt Fund

2,726,308

5,543,983

-

$

Rebate
Fund

Total Current Liabilities Payable
From Restricted Assets

42,859

42,859

Debt Service
Reserve Fund

8,149,919

1,081,839

37,144,397

1,785,299
204,788
75,114
347,235
34,731,961 $

Restricted Accounts
State Payment
Fund

45,518,444

$

Rehabilitation
and Repair Fund

864,399

5,543,983

72,342,188

4,604,038
533,275
44,958
1,090,761
66,069,156

Debt Service
Fund

1,755,260

$

Unrestricted Accounts
Airport
General
Fund
Reserve Fund

Current Liabilities Payable From
Restricted Assets:
Accrued Interest Payable
Accounts Payable
Retainages Payable
Due to Other Government Agencies
PFC Advanced
CFC Advanced
Reserve for Self-Insurance
Interfunds Payable
Bonds Payable, Net of Discounts and
Premiums of ($1,644,318)

Total Current Liabilities Payable
From Unrestricted Assets

Current Liabilities Payable From
Unrestricted Assets:
Accounts Payable
Deferred Income
Escrow Deposits and Reserves
Accrued Expenses
Interfunds Payable

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

Revenue
Fund

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Net Position - Fund Financial Statements
as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals as of December 31, 2014

See Independent Auditor's Report.

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $

Total Net Position

Unrestricted for:
Unrestricted Net Position
Unfunded OPEB/(Deficit)
Funded OPEB Obligation

Restricted for:
Debt Service
Rehabilitation and Repair
Debt Service Reserve
State Payment
Capital Projects
Arbitrage Rebate
Subordinated Debt Fund

Net Investment in Capital Assets

NET POSITION

35,187,921 $

(28,300,156)

(133,583,704)

70,619,301 $

(17,042,053)
(13,652,152)
2,394,049

78,125,666 $

78,082,807

78,082,807

Unrestricted Accounts
Airport
General
Fund
Reserve Fund

(70,998,941)
(76,190,714)
13,605,951

Revenue
Fund

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Net Position - Fund Financial Statements
as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals as of December 31, 2014

19,805,765

16,010,809

16,010,809

Debt Service
Fund

$

7,610,014 $

6,214,853

6,214,853

74

40,732,900 $

38,043,219

38,043,219

Restricted Accounts
Debt Service
Reserve Fund

208,582 $

248

248

Rehabilitation State Payment
and Repair Fund
Fund

224,295 $

169

169

Rebate
Fund

26,047,779 $

9,662,481

9,662,481

Subordinated
Debt Fund

699,950,382 $

195,895,642

(9,210,475)

205,106,117

Construction
Fund

(152,728,365) $

-

Consolidation
Eliminations

Totals

825,784,239 $

182,026,368

(9,958,187)
(89,842,866)
16,000,000

16,010,809
6,214,853
38,043,219
248
(9,210,475)
169
9,662,481

205,106,117

2015

829,763,260

244,992,327

37,606,611
(85,677,277)
14,000,000

15,957,329
6,209,816
36,406,421
138
(5,001,227)
169
6,434,322

219,056,025

2014

$

See Independent Auditor's Report

(4,357,284)

-

-

-

-

$

-

-

-

$

75

-

-

-

$

-

-

-

$

-

-

-

$

-

-

-

$

-

Construction
Fund

(34,016,412)

42,344,406

-

-

Subordinated
Debt Fund

Operating Income (Loss)

$

Rebate
Fund

34,016,412

16,369,940

16,012,408

357,532

12,012,656

12,012,656

Debt Service
Reserve Fund

Restricted Accounts
Rehabilitation
State Payment
and Repair Fund
Fund

52,820,262

$

Debt Service
Fund

Total Operating Expenses

862,693
360,460
458,623
1,494,778
13,722,118
2,026,012
386,904
3,778,241
10,137,704
6,737,745
844,690
4,401,340
582,417
1,716,521
1,922,222
3,387,794

95,164,668

76,141,803
1,673,931
4,191,531
282,912
2,755,446
167,630
4,065,241
155,439
1,922,222
3,429,540
378,973

General Reserve
Fund

34,016,412

$

Airport
Fund

Unrestricted Accounts

Operating Expenses:
Executive
Business Administration
Engineering
Finance
Central Accounts
Other Post-Employment Benefits
Marketing and Communications
Toll Services and Bus Management
Maintenance
Police
Emergency Service Patrol
Electronic Toll Collection Expense
Parking-(Non Airport)
Information and Toll Technology
SJTPO Programs
Transportation Services
Airport
Depreciation

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Revenues:
Tolls
Concessions
ETC Administration Revenue
Parking (Non-Airport)
Marina Parking Revenue
Bus Permits
Rentals
Naming Rights
SJTPO Programs
Transportation Services
Other
Airport

Revenue
Fund

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position - Fund Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015
with Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2014

$

-

-

-

Consolidation
Eliminations
$

3,970,710

103,206,614

862,693
360,460
458,623
1,494,778
13,722,118
2,383,544
386,904
3,778,241
10,137,704
6,737,745
844,690
4,401,340
582,417
1,716,521
1,922,222
3,387,794
16,012,408
34,016,412

107,177,324

76,141,803
1,673,931
4,191,531
282,912
2,755,446
167,630
4,065,241
155,439
1,922,222
3,429,540
378,973
12,012,656

2015
$

Totals

3,975,618

101,107,292

835,029
383,671
2,875,579
1,703,110
11,617,333
1,916,580
543,323
3,903,138
8,139,506
7,068,974
841,607
3,976,904
659,799
1,776,994
2,118,080
2,928,223
16,194,391
33,625,051

105,082,910

74,956,149
1,660,096
3,584,680
349,791
2,697,182
194,919
4,411,775
239,375
2,118,080
3,063,934
566,504
11,240,425

2014
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(28,300,156) $

(133,583,704) $

Total Net Position -- Ending

$

(25,042,148)

(8,843,650)

(135,762,666)

(39,473,374)

Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting

(16,198,498)

(3,258,008)

1,700,673
22,507

Total Net Position Balance -- Beginning
as adjusted

(96,289,292)

2,178,962

Total Net Position Balance -- Beginning

Change in Net Position

$

78,082,807

78,417,124

78,417,124

(334,317)

11,824,130
(12,197,642)

16,010,809

15,957,329

15,957,329

53,480

29,101,555
(7,835,000)

(21,213,075)

$

6,214,853 $

6,209,816

6,209,816

5,037

(110)
-

5,147

76

(13,524,803)
(23,465,965)

39,195

248 $

138

138

110

2,500,003
-

(2,499,893)

Capital Contributions
Transfers (To) From Unrestricted Funds
Transfers (To) From Restricted Funds

(4,981,188)

5,147

39,169,730

(21,213,075)

107

Income (Loss) before
Contributions and Transfers

39,195

5,147

(2,499,893)

(623,904)

(21,216,108)

3,033

38,043,219 $

34,683,494

34,683,494

3,359,725

2,608,485
-

751,240

751,240

1,114,123
(362,883)

Debt Service
Reserve Fund

Restricted Accounts
Rehabilitation
State Payment
and Repair Fund
Fund

(3,174,676)

(624,838)

41,104
(1,909)

Debt Service
Fund

Total of Non-Operating
Income/(Expenses)

934

General Reserve
Fund

(2,500,000)

(3,540,751)

(12,303)

571,051
(213,595)
20,922

Airport
Fund

Unrestricted Accounts

Non-Operating Income(Expenses)
Interest and Dividend Revenue
Market Value Adjustments on Investments
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Assets
Other Expense
Bad Debt Expense
Swap Termination Expense
Cancellation of Deferred Revenue
(Increase) in OPEB Liability
Feeder Road Expense
Amortization of Bond Premium
Interest on Bonds
State Payment

Revenue
Fund

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position - Fund Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015
with Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2014

169 $

169

169

-

-

-

-

Rebate
Fund

9,662,481 $

8,157,249

-

8,157,249

1,505,232

1,497,374
-

7,858

7,858

4,651
(667,485)

709,286
(38,594)

Subordinated
Debt Fund

195,895,642 $

214,054,798

-

214,054,798

(18,159,156)

6,842,000
(66,207)
7,835,000

(32,769,949)

1,246,463

1,755,547
(415,625)

(110,455)
(7)

17,003

Construction
Fund

-

-

-

(35,641,100)
35,641,100

-

-

Consolidation
Eliminations

$

182,026,368

196,675,303

(48,317,024)

244,992,327

(14,648,935)

6,842,000
-

(21,490,935)

(25,461,645)

2,461,788
(616,981)
20,922
(110,455)
(12,310)
(4,165,589)
1,760,198
(22,299,218)
(2,500,000)

2015

$

Totals

244,992,327

278,174,699

-

278,174,699

(33,182,372)

8,185,041
(441,921)
441,921

(41,367,413)

(45,343,031)

3,421,435
787,242
931
(961,724)
(936)
(27,508,864)
5,828,116
(2,632,002)
(349,995)
1,344,334
(22,771,568)
(2,500,000)

2014

08/04/09

08/04/09

08/04/09

Transportation System Revenue Bonds,
2009 Series A-1
(Tax Exempt)
Original Issue Amount $62,015,000

Transportation System Revenue Bonds,
2009 Series A-2
(Tax Exempt)
Original Issue Amount $38,995,000

Transportation System Revenue Bonds,
2009 Series A-5
Federally Taxable- Issuer Subsidy- Build America Bonds
Original Issue Amount $96,260,000
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01/12/06

Date of
Issue

Transportation System Revenue Bonds,
2006 Series A
(Tax Exempt)
Original Issue Amount $50,365,000

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Schedule of Bonds Payable
As of December 31, 2015

$

$

$

$

96,260,000

38,995,000

62,015,000

50,365,000

Amount
Issued

77

7.000%
7.000%
7.000%
7.000%
7.000%
7.000%
7.000%
7.000%
7.000%

3.500%
3.750%
4.000%
4.000%
4.250%
5.000%
4.500%
4.625%
5.000%
4.750%
4.875%
5.000%
4.875%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.125%
5.500%
5.500%
5.500%
5.500%

4.000%
5.000%
4.000%
4.000%
4.000%

4.500%
4.500%
4.500%
4.500%
4.500%
4.500%

Interest
Rate

11/01/30
11/01/31
11/01/32
11/01/33
11/01/34
11/01/35
11/01/36
11/01/37
11/01/38

11/01/15
11/01/16
11/01/17
11/01/18
11/01/19
11/01/20
11/01/21
11/01/22
11/01/23
11/01/24
11/01/25
11/01/25
11/01/26
11/01/26
11/01/27
11/01/28
11/01/29
11/01/30
11/01/31
11/01/32
11/01/33

11/01/15
11/01/16
11/01/17
11/01/18
11/01/19

11/01/30
11/01/31
11/01/32
11/01/33
11/01/34
11/01/35

Maturity
Date

-

96,260,000

-

96,260,000

-

5,460,000
5,725,000
6,020,000
11,710,000
12,775,000
13,375,000
19,555,000
19,725,000
1,915,000

36,005,000

1,320,000
1,390,000
1,445,000
1,510,000
1,250,000
1,290,000
1,310,000
1,320,000
1,325,000
650,000
650,000
725,000
535,000
1,210,000
1,130,000
1,035,000
5,405,000
5,680,000
5,960,000
865,000

18,670,000

5,190,000
4,770,000
4,290,000
4,420,000

5,460,000
5,725,000
6,020,000
11,710,000
12,775,000
13,375,000
19,555,000
19,725,000
1,915,000

1,135,000

37,140,000

-

1,135,000

1,135,000
1,320,000
1,390,000
1,445,000
1,510,000
1,250,000
1,290,000
1,310,000
1,320,000
1,325,000
650,000
650,000
725,000
535,000
1,210,000
1,130,000
1,035,000
5,405,000
5,680,000
5,960,000
865,000

6,700,000

25,370,000

-

6,700,000

6,700,000
5,190,000
4,770,000
4,290,000
4,420,000

50,365,000

-

50,365,000

Balance
December 31,
2015
7,065,000
7,380,000
7,710,000
8,055,000
9,855,000
10,300,000

Issued

Paid or
Refunded

7,065,000
7,380,000
7,710,000
8,055,000
9,855,000
10,300,000

Balance
December 31,
2014

9/20/12

12/29/14

Transportation System Revenue Refunding Bonds
2012 Series A
(Tax Exempt)
Original Issue Amount $76,780,000

Transportation System Revenue Refunding Bonds,
2014 Series A
(Tax Exempt)
Original Issue Amount $112,305,000
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06/05/12

Date of
Issue
08/04/09

Transportation System Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2012
(Tax Exempt)
Original Issue Amount $25,680,000

Subordinated Serial Bonds
2009 Series A
(Tax Exempt)
Original Issue Amount $19,085,000

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Schedule of Bonds Payable
As of December 31, 2015

$

$

$

$

112,305,000

76,780,000

25,680,000

Amount
Issued
19,085,000
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5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%

5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%

5.000%
5.000%
5.000%

Interest
Rate
4.000%
4.000%
4.000%
4.000%
4.000%
4.125%
4.250%
4.375%
4.500%
4.500%
4.500%
4.750%
4.750%
5.000%

11/01/20
11/01/21
11/01/22
11/01/23
11/01/24
11/01/25
11/01/26
11/01/27
11/01/28
11/01/29
11/01/30
11/01/31
11/01/32
11/01/33
11/01/34
11/01/35
11/01/36
11/01/37
11/01/38
11/01/39

11/01/23
11/01/24
11/01/25
11/01/26
11/01/27
11/01/28
11/01/29

11/01/20
11/01/21
11/01/22

Maturity
Date
11/01/15
11/01/16
11/01/17
11/01/18
11/01/19
11/01/20
11/01/21
11/01/22
11/01/23
11/01/24
11/01/25
11/01/26
11/01/27
11/01/28

112,305,000

-

112,305,000

-

1,335,000
1,400,000
1,475,000
1,545,000
1,620,000
1,705,000
1,790,000
1,880,000
3,485,000
4,555,000
4,755,000
4,965,000
5,190,000
5,415,000
4,435,000
4,585,000
5,180,000
5,780,000
24,100,000
27,110,000

1,335,000
1,400,000
1,475,000
1,545,000
1,620,000
1,705,000
1,790,000
1,880,000
3,485,000
4,555,000
4,755,000
4,965,000
5,190,000
5,415,000
4,435,000
4,585,000
5,180,000
5,780,000
24,100,000
27,110,000

76,780,000

-

76,780,000

-

9,430,000
9,900,000
10,400,000
10,920,000
11,460,000
12,035,000
12,635,000

9,430,000
9,900,000
10,400,000
10,920,000
11,460,000
12,035,000
12,635,000

-

14,490,000

25,680,000

-

830,000

25,680,000

-

Balance
December 31,
2015
860,000
895,000
930,000
970,000
1,010,000
1,050,000
1,095,000
1,140,000
1,195,000
1,245,000
1,305,000
1,365,000
1,430,000

8,145,000
8,555,000
8,980,000

Issued

Paid or
Refunded
830,000

8,145,000
8,555,000
8,980,000

15,320,000

Balance
December 31,
2014
830,000
860,000
895,000
930,000
970,000
1,010,000
1,050,000
1,095,000
1,140,000
1,195,000
1,245,000
1,305,000
1,365,000
1,430,000
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Transportation System Revenue Refunding Bonds,
2014 Series B
Federally Taxable
Original Issue Amount $17,255,000

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Schedule of Bonds Payable
As of December 31, 2015

12/29/14

Date of
Issue

$

17,255,000

Amount
Issued
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3.900%
4.200%
4.300%
4.350%
4.550%
4.900%
5.050%

Interest
Rate

11/01/20
11/01/21
11/01/22
11/01/23
11/01/24
11/01/27
11/01/28

Maturity
Date

$

456,475,000 $

-

$

8,665,000 $

-

447,810,000

17,255,000

-

-

17,255,000

-

Balance
December 31,
2015
112,305,000

1,825,000
1,880,000
1,940,000
2,000,000
2,065,000
6,665,000
880,000

Issued

Paid or
Refunded

1,825,000
1,880,000
1,940,000
2,000,000
2,065,000
6,665,000
880,000

Balance
December 31,
2014
112,305,000

South Jersey Transportation Authority
Schedule of Toll Revenue
Year Ended December 31, 2015

Interchange:
Pleasantville
Exit 5, Route 9
Mays Landing
Egg Harbor
Hammonton
Winslow
Williamstown
Pomona
Berlin Crosskeys
Route 50
Unusual and Toll Free

Toll Revenue

Vehicle Count

$

15,926,059
1,018,143
2,445,904
49,042,798
1,338,501
672,453
1,602,292
2,074,134
1,308,595
712,924

$

76,141,803

18,552,596
1,317,322
3,343,360
15,691,409
1,702,910
857,284
3,683,917
2,734,379
3,022,469
216,247
548,556
51,670,449

Unusual vehicles include vehicles with special transit permits, fire equipment, ambulance, and
patrons without funds.
Toll-free vehicles include Authority vehicles, emergency vehicles, vendors servicing the Expressway
System, and others whom the Authority deems to be necessary and convenient to the operation
of the Expressway System.
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